
AGENDA
WYKOFF CITY COUNCIL

November 10, 2025
7:00 p.m.

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. APPROVAL OF'AGENDA
4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA:

1' APPROVAL OF MINUTES- Regular Minutes October l4th,2025 Special
meeting October 20th

2, APPROVAL OF BILLS
3. APPROVAL OF TREASURER'S REPORT

5. VISITORS
1. Rebecca Sheely

6. COMMITTEE REPORTS
l. WWTP-Rick Whitney, Ryan Breckenridge, Jeff Hare
2. Fire Dept.-Mike Lund

a. Approval of Turnout gear for new Fire person
b. Quotes for new Fire Dept Laptop

3. First Responders- Cory Bremseth
4. Personnel committee-Barb Fate and Missy Musel
5. Streets-Mayor and Jane Baker
6. Community Education -Barb Fate and Jane Baker
7. Revolving Loan committee-Barb Fate and Jane Baker
8. Park and Recreation, Joint Trails Board Representatives-Jane Baker and Jeff Hare
9. Zoning

a. Approval of zoningRequest Brian wiemerslage Utility Shed
l0.SherifPs Report
l1.Mayor's Report

7. Old Business
8. New Business

a. Resolution to Accept Donati on 2025-20
b. Advertising for Bluff Country
c. Poll for Storage Container
d. Increase price of 2d Meter
e. Resolution for Street Assessments
f. Resolution for Delinquent Utility Bills
g. Grants- Solar & Library

9. ADJOURNMENT



Wykoff City Council Meeting
Regular Meeting M inutes

October 1,4,2025, - 7:00 pm

A meeting of the wykoff citycouncil was held in the council Room at 106 Gold St. N. on october
!4,2025, at 7:00 pm. Attendees included Mayor Ryan Breckenridge, Jeff Hare, Barb Fate and Jane
Baker. Absent: Missy Musel. Also, present city Administrator, Becky schmidt.

Agenda-Mayor Breckenridge called for any additions and noted that under New Business adding:
D. Liability Coverage

E, Office Hours

F. Norby Tree Service

Motion by Fate and seconded by Baker to approve the agenda as noted. Motion carried 4-0.

Consent Agenda- Mayor asked to remove the bill pay to Stantec and discuss further in New
Business (b) Stantac Change Order. Motion to accept the consent agenda as presented by Baker
and seconded by Hare. Motion carried 4-0.

Visitors- None

wwrP- Rick whitney reported to the council the list as stated below:

1.) Completed DMR no limit exceedances.

2.) Completed rounds, checks and process control.
3.) Conducted MLSS checks.

4.1 Checked biological activity under microscope.
5.) Cleaned & Loaded Sludge drying bed.

6.) Spoke to Minnesota pump regarding lift station service.
7.1 Assisted with 4 Locates.

8.) Met with Streets Committee

9.) Spoke with KLM regarding water tower cleaning.
10.) Met with Joe Oconnell AA excavating.

11.) Cleaned headworks area pulled screenings.
12.) Mowed and trimmed plant.

13.) Monitored plant during heavy rain events O power outages.
14.) Reviewed l&l lateralvideo.

He noted that the Minnesota Pump Service will take place in the spring and KLM will also be
cleaning the water tower in the spring. He also noted that they had flushed the hydrants in the
city on Sunday.



Fire Department - Mike Lund, Fire Chief reported that they had a good Fall Fest and were very
busy the entire weekend. Councilman Hare and council members thanked the department for
stepping up whenever they were asked, to make the celebration a success. Lund noted that
they did have one Fire Call during the month.

First Responders-No re port

Personnel- Fate reported that the committee had received the letter of resignation from LuAnn
Hare' Motion by Fate and seconded by Bakerto accept the letter of resignation. Motion carried
3-1 with Hare abstaining. Fate noted that they have scheduled the interviews, two of them had
been held on Monday and three will be interviewed on Thursday. Becky noted that one person
had removed their name. Becky asked that once the interviews are complete, could the
committee make a recommendation as soon as possible so that person could start the following
week. The council agreed that a poll could be taken after they receive the recommendation from
the committee.

Streets - Mayor noted that he and Baker had met with the committee and agreed that the repair
approved previously to the culvert by Bremseth needed to be changed. A poll was taken by the
council so that O'Connell could complete the work. Voting in favor of the S12,5OO charge was
Musel, Breckenridge, Hare and Fate. Baker was unavailable. Motion to approve this poll as
presented was approved.

Communitv Education- Fate reported that she and Baker would be attending the community
Education meeting on October 27rh and would report back in November. Becky noted that Bonnie
Heidtke had asked if someone from the council would be willing to sit on a committee that is
dealing with transportation issues in Fillmore County. Barb Fate volunteered to serve on this
committee.

Revolving Loan Committee- No report

Park and Recreation. Joint Trails Board - Hare stated they had not met for the park and Recreation
Committee. Becky noted that she had been contacted by the Joint Trails Board asking for a

representative to serve on their board from Wykoff. They are looking at connecting the trails from
Spring Valley to Wykoff and then to Fountain. lt was agreed to put this information into the
newsletter as it could be anyone in the communitythat could serve on that board.

Zoning -The Mayor reviewed the zoning applications that the council had before them.

Toning Req uest Schleusner/Cement Sla b

J&J Properties/cement slab and sidewalk
Motion by Baker and seconded by Fate to approve the zoning requests. Motion carried 4-O



Sheriff's Report- Patrol Sergeant, Scott Keigley from Fillmore County reported that he wanted to
come to the meeting to introduce himself to the council as he is the person that generates the
reports each month to the council. He noted that if they had any questions or concerns that he
would be more than happy to meet with them.

Mavor's Report- Mayor noted that the St. Johns School will again be conducting the essay "Mayor
e and the Principal will review them and choose the winner. More informationfor the Day". H

will be available at the next meeting. He also noted that there is grant money that can be used to
paint a mural on a building, which he would like to discuss further at another meeting.

Old Business-

Mike Shaw Propertv - Becky reported that at present our hands are tied, except for ordinance
Violations which the city can fine them for. However, she stated that we cannot go on their
property and remove any of the vehicles in violation. lf they do not respond to the removal on
their own and address the concerns from the letter being sent, we can continue to fine them each
day and if not paid, assess their taxes. The Sheriff's department can serve a citation if they
continue to ignore the requests. She noted that a letter is being drafted and will be sent to Mr.
Shaw after council approval. Also discussed was a letter to be sent to Alexander Lucas who owns
property on Line St. about the condition of the property dealing with weeds, trees and grass. As
this property was turned over to the Attorney Lee Novotny for condemnation, Becky will contact
him before sending the complaint letter.

New Business

Stender Service Call-Community Center/No Charge - Becky reported that Mr. Stender had repair

a fixture in the hall for S105.99 and did not charge the city for the labor or parts.

Stantec Change Order- Brett Grabau, Stantec Engineer explained the change orderforthe 2025

Street Project which the original charge was for 5l,lG7.o+ and was increased to Sg,791.g3.

Motion by Hare and seconded by Baker to approve the change order. Motion carried 4-0.

Brett will be working with John and Rick to upgrade the utility maps for the city, adding curb stops

as they find them. He then asked the councilfor clarification on the next steps for the Carimona

Drainage Project that Stantec was approved to submit a quote for the plans. The next step would

be to advertise for quotes from various companies. Discussion followed and it was agreed that at

this point the council did not want to take that next step as this project will need to be worked

into the budget for 2027. Brett also stated that Stantec had received a grant from the State of

Minnesota and were requested to finish the Lead Service Line for several cities. Rick Whitney

covered most of the city in 2024 but had to submit the data to the state even if they had not



gotten I00% of the community completed. Brett has been going door to door to complete

homes that had not been done in 2024. lf the owners are notthere, he has been leaving a letter
for them to contact him by using a QR Code and fill out the information on their own. He stated

that this needs to be completed by October 3L,2025.

Seminar in St. Clou d, November 13th, 2025- Becky noted that she would like to attend a free

workshop in St. Cloud for Financing Community Projects. She was requesting mileage, motel and

food expenses. Motion by Breckenridge and seconded by Baker to approve Becky and Rick

Whitney's attendance at the conference. Motion approved 4_0.

Liabilitv Coveraee - Becky noted that this is an annual request by the lnsurance company to
confirm and place in the official minutes, that the city does not waive the monetary limits of the
city's Liability Coverage lnsurance. Breckenridge motion to approve and seconded by Baker.
Motion carried 4-0.

Office Hours - Fate asked to have discussion on the hours that the office will be open with the
new person only working one day a week. lt was discussed to have the office open on Friday
mornings or have the office hours extended to 4:00 or 5:00 Monday through Thursday. Becky
had calculated that the cost would increase the budget for the office by $5,200. Mayor
Breckenridge asked to table this discussion until the 2027 budget meeting as none of these
suggestions were built into the 2026 budget. lt was noted that Becky would be going to three
days a week and the new person would be in the office one day a week and more if needed at
various times of the year.

Norbv Tree Service - Becky noted that there were three more trees that John had requested be
removed that are safety concerns. The cost to remove them was 53,600. The council agreed
that they should be taken care of this year as there was still money in this year's budget.
Motion by Baker and seconded by Fate to approve the removal by Norby Tree Service for
53,600. Motion carried 4-0.

Meeting was adjourned at 7:58 p.m.

Adjournment

Secreta ry Date of approval



Wykoff City Councit Meeting
Public Hearing Meeting Minutes

October 20,2025
7:00 p.m.

A Pubtic Hearingof thewykoff city councitwas hetd in the communitycenterar2lT Goldst. N. on october
20,2025, at 7:00 PM. Attendees inctuded Mayor Ryan Breckenridge, Jane Baker, Missy Muset. Absent Barb
Fate and Jeff Hare. Also, present City Administrator, Becky Schmidt and Brett Grabau, Stantec Engineer.

Mayor Breckenridge calted the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. and stated that the pubtic Hearing had been
catted to give an opportunity for those residents affected by the 2025 Street project an opportunity to
comment on the proposed assessments. He then turned the meeting over to Brett Grabau with Stantec.
Mr' Grabau reviewed this process which had started with a Pubtic Hearing on Novemb er 1g,2024. where
they reviewed the projects that they woutd be focusing on for the 2025 Street Project. Mr. Grabau reviewed
the handout presented covering what was compteted in Area 1 and Area 2. The cost for the totat project
was $779,246.08 with the assessed properties portion being $127,003.72 and the cities portion of
$a52,2a236. He reviewed the formula used to reach the dotlar amount assessed to each property, based
on [and footage.

Mr' Grabau stated that the city witt be tooking at a new ordinance that witt be adopted for future project
assessments, as they used past practice for this project.

Jeff Hare arrived at 7:08 p.m.

Mr. Grabau noted that if anyone present were to object to the assessment for their property, they needed to
put that in writing before the ctose of the pubtic hearing. lf anyone woutd choose to pay the assessment
before November 15th there woutd be no interest added, after 30 days theywitt need to paythe assessment
at the Fittmore County Court House. The City Cterks Office does not take these payments after the 30-day
waiting period.

Mr. Grabau then asked any resident present if they had any questions about the assessments. Mr. Eddie
Swartzentruber with Tri-State Commerciat Roofing, LLC was present and asked if he coutd pay immediatety
and Schmidt noted that he could stop in the office to pay as the county would not be getting the names and
assessable amounts for 30 days.

Councitor, Missy Muset questioned why the seven properties who are connected to Area 2 (the Trunk
Sanitary Sewer Main and Sewer Services) att paid the same amount. She noted that one of the residents
needed to have their comptete tine reptaced white the other six had onty the required 1O feet. Mr. Grabau
exptained that their poticy is to take the totat amount of the assessed amount which was g13,969.91 and
divide it among the seven properties, they do not break it down to each resident. Councitor, Missy Muset
woutd tike to go on record stating she was impressed with the work that was done. The contractor did an
amazing job and was very considerate.

Hearing no other questions, Mayor Breckenridge ctosed the Pubtic Hearing at7:32p.m.



Mayor Breckenridge opened the speciat meeting with the adoption of the Assessment Rott Resotution,
2025-19, which Becky Schmidt read as fottows:

Resol ution 2025-19 Adopti ng Assessment

WHEREAS, pursuant to proper notice duly given as required by law, the council has met and heard
and passed upon all objections to the proposed assessment for the 2025 Street and Utility
lmprovement for the City of Wykoff, the improvement of Bartlett Street East, Line Street North and
the homes adjacent to the main sewer line between Gold Street and Line Street south of Barflett
and north of Front Street,

NOWTHEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF WYKOFF, MINNESOTA:

1' Such proposed assessment, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, is
hereby accepted and shall constitute the special assessment against the lands named therein, and
each tract of land therein included is hereby found to be benefiteO ny the proposed improvement in
the amount of the assessment levied against it.

2' Such assessment shall be payable in equal annual installments extending over a period of 15
years, the first of the installments to be payable on or before the first Monday in January 2026, and
shall bear interest at the rate of 6.25 percent per annum from the date of the adoption of this
assessment resolution. To the first installment there shall be added interest on the entire
assessment from the date of this resolution until December 31 , 2026. To each subsequent
installment, when due, there shall be added interest for one year on all unpaid installments.

3. The owner of any property so assessed may, at any time prior to certification of the assessment
to the county auditor, pay the whole amount of the assessment on such property, with interest
accrued to the date of payment, to the county auditor, except that no interest shall be charged if the
entire assessment is paid within 30 days from the adoption of this resolution; and he/she may, at
any time thereafter, pay to the Fillmore County Auditor the entire amount of the assessment
remaining unpaid, with interest accrued to December 31 of the year in which such payment is made.
Such payment must be made before November 15, or interest will be charged through December
31 of the next succeeding year.

4. The clerk shall forthwith transmit a certified duplicate of this assessment to the county auditor
to be extended on the property tax lists of the county. Such assessments shall be collected and paid
over in the same manner as other municipal taxes.,

Motion by Jane Baker and seconded by Jeff Hare to adopt the resolution.

Those voting in favor: Jeff Hare, Jane Baker and Ryan Breckenridge

Those Voting Against: None

Abstaining: Missy Musel

Not Present: Barb Fate

Adopted by the council on this 20th day of October 2025.

s/s Rvan Breckenridqe

Mayor



s/s Rebecca Schmidt,

City Administrator

Meeting was adjourned at 7:36 p.m.

Adjournment

Secretary Date of approval



ASSESSI4ENT HEARING
2025 Street and Utility Improvements

Wykoff, MN
October 2Ot zOZs

7100 PM

I. Improvement Areas:
Street between W
and N Gold Street

ergg4lire Hail hnitary Sewer (Trunk
wffitn the rear residentnl lots between N L and seruices

concrete parking lot north of the rire ujtL u as along the

il. UtiliW Imorovements:

ain
main
rban

Area 2: Replacement of tle trunk sanitary sewer main and sewer seruices affected by the mainreplacement including manhole structures.

a ruralsection to an urban section with curb and
ties into the newly constructed County Road 5
on that was constructed in 2024.

eotexfile Fabric, 24-inches of Breaker Run
ase and 3.5-inches of bituminous surfacing. With

water, the construction oJ subsurface storm

street widths are 34-feet Face !o Face (F/F) which would allow for two ll-foot travet lanes alongwith parallel parking on one side of the-road,. maintaining irre part<ing .upu.ity utong Wykoff
commons and tying into csAH 5 on both ends of the imirovement,
Area 2: The open trench replacement of this sanitary sewer system required the removal of aportion of the concrete parking lot nofth of the Fire itall, cleaiing and grubbing of iome privatety
owned trees, along with salvage and reinstallation of chain link iencinf wittrin-oucLyuros.

The city of Wykoff decided to replace additional parking lot pavement following the installation ofthe sanitary sewer.

TYPE OF IMPROVEMENT TOTAL PROJECT
COSTS

ASSESSED CITY/ UTILITY

$ 438.791.40 $ 60.407.27 $ 378.384.1 3
$ 104,091.s8
$ 127.041.09 11$ 20.101-s8 $ 4.020.32 $ 16.081.26
$ 89.220.43 $ 29.184.7s $ 60.03s.58

ALS $ 779,246.08 $ L27,003.72 $ 6s2.242.36
xTotal project costs shown above are without bonding or city administrative costs, which bring the actual totalproject costs to 9828,610.S0.



V. Celculated Assessments:

IMPROVEMENT AREA
ASSESSABLE FRONT

FOOTAGE
ASSESSABLE PROJECT

COSTS
ASSESSMENT MTE/

1178 $ r ts,035.91

e/ Bartlett Street I golo of the total
propefi owners. by the street

footage while side dentiat lots were

Proposed assessment rates for the Fire Hall Sanitarv Sewer Improvenient area assume 1000/o of thesewer selvice from the main to the seruice connectibn.

The proposed assessment total is approximately L5,3?7o/o of the project costs of the improvement.
The CiW reserves the rlghf when levying assesiments, to modisr';iaup.,t f.; til methodology to,the extent the City Council deems appropriate,

IMPROVEMENT AREA ASSESSABLE
SERVICES

BLE PROJECT ASSESSMENT RATE/

FIRE.HALL SEWER 7 I 967.81



g
F u\ l* 2giil-K w'r+h nl n^'tr.



CITY OF WYKOFF

Payments

Gurrent Period: October 2025

Payments Batch 1 10425PAY $43,089.32

Refer 1840 GARRY SCHMIDT
cash Payment E 101-41944-240 small rools and Minor E Bolts for city shed
lnvoice 100 ,l1t4t2\2|

Transaction Date 11t4l2O2S SECURITY STATE B 1O1OO

1110612511:56 AM

Page 1

$86.00

Total $86 00

Refer 1841 BADGER METER
Cash Payment E 601-49430-328 Service Contract
lnvoice 80214175

Transaction Date 'l1l4l2O2S SECURITY STATE B 101OO

$119.67

Total $119.67

Refer '1842 ARVIG
Cash Payment

lnvoice

Cash Payment

lnvoice

Cash Payment

lnvoice

Cash Payment

lnvoice

Cash Payment

lnvoice

Cash Payment

lnvoice

Transaction Date

E 101-41400-321

E'to1-41400-325

E 260-45176-325

E 240-42200-325

E 101-42200-325

E 101-41941-325

11t4t2025

Cellphone/Telephone

lnternet Service

lnternet Service

lnternet Service

lnternet Service

lnternet Service

$48.62

$81.95

$87 95

$47.09

$47.09

$86.95

SECURITY STATE B 1O1OO Total $399.65

Refer 1843 Currv's CusIom Cut Gutter
Cash Payment E 101-42200-220 Repair & Maintenance S Gutter guard
lnvoice 10929 11l4t2O2S

Transaction Date 111412025 SECURITY STATE B 1O1OO

$960.00

Total $960.00

Refer 1844 CARDMEMBER SERY/CES
Cash Payment

lnvoice oct2025

Cash Payment

lnvoice oct2025

Cash Payment

lnvoice oct2025

Cash Payment

lnvoice oct2025

Cash Payment

lnvoice oct2025

Cash Payment

lnvoice oct2025

Cash Payment

lnvoice oct2025

Cash Payment

lnvoice oct2025

Cash Payment

lnvoice oct2025

E 101-42200-220 Repair & Maintenance S painting hydrandts
11t5t2025

E 101-45200-240 Smail Toots and Minor E Fail Fest
11t5t2025

E 101-41941-221 Equipment Repair & Mai New lock
,t1t5t2025

E26O-45176-210 Operatingsupplies laundry
11t5t2025

E 101-43100-210 Operating Suppties Street signs
11t5t2025

E 240-42200-220 Repair & Maintenance S

11t5t2025
E 601-49400-200 Office Suppties postage

11t5t2025

E 602-49450-200 Office Supplies postage

11t5t2025

E 101-41400-200 Office Suppties Software
11t5t2025

$69.90

$63.22

$363 82

$24.98

$79.33

$12.99

$249.1 0

$249 10

$137 35



CITY OF WYKOFF

Payments

Current Period: October 2025

1110612511:56 AM

Page 2

$45.45
Cash Payment

lnvoice oct2025

Transaction Date

E 10'l-41400-220 Repair & Maintenance S
11t5t2025

't1t5t2025 SECURITY STATE B 1O1OO Total $1,295 24

Refer 1845 FLOW MEA
cash Payment E 602-41s40-300 professionar services certification
lnvoice 25-1293 1 1tSt2O2S

Transaction Date 11t\l212b SECURITY STATE B 1OlO0

$639 00

Total $639.00
Refer 1846 FIRE SAFETY USA,INC
Cash Payment

lnvoice 207520

Transaction Date

E101-42200-300 Professionalservices Fireextinguisherrs
11t5t2025

11t5t2025 sEcuRtTY STATE B 1O1OO

$196.00

Total $196.00
Refer 1847 FILLMORE COUNTY JOURNAL
Cash Payment

lnvoice 185239

Transaction Date 1itSl2O2S

E 408-43100-350 Printing & publishing Spec Assess ad
11t5t2025

$755.09

SECURITY STATE B 101OO Total $755.09
Refer 1848 GOPHER STATE ONE.CALL. INC
Cash Payment E 601-41540-300 professional Services Locating
lnvoice 5100866 1 1tSt2O2S

Transaction Date 11lSl2O2S SECURITY STATE B 10100

$24.30

Total $24.30
Refer 1849 GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL
Cash Payment E 101-41400-329 Lease
lnvoice 40433800

Transaction Date 11tEl2O2S

Printer lease

SECURITY STATE B ,101OO

$98.79

Total $98.79
Refer 1850 HAWKINS,INC.
Gash Payment

lnvoice 723321O

Cash Payment

lnvoice 72332'lO

Transaction Date

E602-49480-216 Chemicals and Chem pr

11t5t2025
E601-49420-216 Chemicals and Chem pr

11t5t2025

11t5t2025 sEcuRtTY STATE B 10100

$6,289.04

$20.00

Total $6,309 04

Refer 1851 KWIK TRIP
Cash Payment E 101-42200-212 Motor Fuels
lnvoice Oct2025 1 1tSl2O2S

Cash Payment E 240-42200-212 Motor Fuels
lnvoice Oct2025 1 1tSt2O2S

Transaction Date 11lSl2O2S SECURITY STATE B 101OO

$10.20

$10.21

Total $20.41

Refer 1852 METERING & TECHNOLOGY SOLU
Cash Payment

lnvoice 9179

Cash Payment

lnvoice 91 79

Transaction Date

E 601-49430-240 Small Tools and Minor E Water meters
11t5t2025

E 601-49430-240 Small Tools and Minor E Water meters
11t5t2025

11t5t2025 SECURITY STATE B 101OO

$1,291.40

$1,170 00

Total $2,461.40
Refer 1853 MINNWEST BANK
Cash Payment E 101-41400-200 Office Suppties
lnvoice j,lt\t2\z|
TransactionDate 11lSl2O2S

Safety dep box $42.00

SECURITYSTATEB 1O1OO Total $42.00



CITY OF WYKOFF

Payments

Current Period: October 2025

Refer 1854 SPR/NG VALLEY AMBULANCE SER
Cash Payment E 230-41540-300 professional Services
lnvoice 2507 j1t5l212'

Transaction Date 11tSl202S SECURITY STATE B 10100

111061251'1:56 AM

Page 3

$6,510.00

Total $6,510.00
Refer 1855 OCONA/EIL EXCA VATING AAID S/V

cash Payment E 101-431s0-220 Repair & Maintenance s culvert repair by Bremseth
lnvoice 1085 11lSt2O2S

Transaction Date 11tSt2O2S SECUR|TY STATE B 1O1OO

$10,924 00

Total $10,924.00

Refer 1856 PAUTS LOCK&KEY SHOP. INC.
Cash Payment

lnvoice 100877

Cash Payment

lnvoice 99874

Transaction Date

E 101-41941-221 Equipment Repair & Mai Rebore door lock
11t5t2025

E 101-42200-220 Repair & Maintenance S Repair door lock west side
11t5t2025

11t5t2025 SECURITY STATE B 1O1OO

$300.00

$362.50

Total $662.50

Refer 1857 RICHARDS SANITATION
Cash Payment E 101-43200-436 Contracted Services
lnvoice 176703 11tSt2O2S

Transaction Date 11tSt202S SECUR|TY STATE B 1O1OO

$3,731.86

Total $3,731.86

Refer 1858 SOU'J"HERN MN RECYCLING
cash Payment E 101-43200-436 contracted services Fall Fest Rolr off
lnvoice 794543 1,ttSt2O2S

Transaction Date 11tSt202S SECUR|TY STATE B IOIOO

$350.00

Total $350.00

Refer 1859 SPR/A/G VALLEY ACE HARDWARE
Cash Payment E 101-41941-21 1 Cleaning Supplies
lnvoice 250431

Transaction Date 11lSt2O2S

HALL CLEANING SUPPLIES

SECURITY STATE B 1O1OO

$36.97

Total $36.97
Refer 1860 IR/-SIAIE BUS//VESS MACHINE
Cash Payment E 101-41400-328 Service Contract
lnvoice 638843 1,ltSt2O2S

Transaction Date 11tSt2O2S

service contract

SECURITY STATE B 1O1OO

$158.03

Total $158.03
Refer 1861 Barb Wanoen
Cash Payment G 601-22000 Deposits
lnvoice 1,lt5t2\2\
Transaction Date 11tSt2O2S

Water Meter Dep Return

SECURITY STATE B 101OO Total $143.80

$143.80

Refer 1862 CITY OF WYKOFF
Cash Payment E 101-41400-329 Lease
lnvoice 1lrct2o2\
Transaction Date 11151202b

Lease

SECURITYSTATEB 101OO Total $1,401.35

$1,401 35

Refer 1863 UT\L|TY COIVSUI IAIVIS /NC
Cash Payment E 602-41540-300 professional Services
lnvoice 125696 11tSt2O2S

Transaction Date 1'll5t212| SECURITY STATE B IO1OO

$1,1 19 70

$1 ,1 1 9.70

Refer 1864 ENVIROMENTAL WATER SERY/CE
Cash Payment E 601-49410-436 Contracted Services
lnvoice 6151

Total

$700.00



CITY OF WYKOFF

Payments

Gurrent Period: October 2025

Cash Payment E 602-49480-436 Contracted Services
lnvoice 6151

Cash Payment E 602-49480-325 lnternet Service
lnvoice 6151

Transaction Date 11tSt2O2S SECUR|TY STATE B IO1OO

1110612511:56 AM

Page 4

$2,800.00

$194 52

Total $3,694.52
Refer 1865 tKQ THOMPSON MOTORS
Cash Payment E 101-41944-210 Operating Supplies
lnvoice 27-300629 11t6t2O2S

TransactionDate 111612025

New Storage Container

SECURITYSTATEB 101OO

$950.00

Total $950.00

Fund Summary
1O1OO SECURITY STATE BANK

$20,631.38

$6,510.00

$70.29

$1 12.93

$755.09

$3,718.27

$11,291.36

$43,089.32

Pre-Written Checks $0.00
$43,089.32Checks to be Generated by the Computer

Total $43,089.32

101 GENEML FUND

230 AMBULANCE FUND

240 RURAL FIRE FUND

260 HISTORICAL FUND

408 2025 Street Project

601 WATER FUND

602 SEWER FUND



CITY OF WYKOFF

Payments

Current Period: October 2025

1110612512:10 PM

Page 1

Payment Batch 102125PAY

Refer 1839 Jeff Hare

$500 00

ck#030358 10t21t2025
Cash Payment E 101-41950-240 Small Tools and Minor E New Tent
lnvoice rct21t2121

Transaction Date 10t2il2025 SECURITY STATE B 10100

$500.00

Total $500.00

Fund Summary

101 GENEML FUND

101OO SECURITY STATE BANK

$500.00

$500.00

Pre-Written Checks $500.00
$0.00Checks to be Generated by the Computer

Total $500.00



MINNWEST
BANK' Good Morning, Rebecca Schmidt

ACCOU NTS

Ledger: $1,125,648.56 @

SweepBal: $925,306.16 @

o
o
a

Minnwest Bank Checking 0O5B
Ledger Balance

SweepBal
$200,342.40
$925,306.16

Minnwest Bank Clry OF WYKOFF 0058
Available Balance $925,306.16

Asset Su m ma ry

CITY OF WYKOFF
0058

Available Balance

82.09o/o

$92s,306.16
51,127,179
Total Assets



CITY OF WYKOFF
Employee Pays Hours Detail2

Amount Hours

1'1106125 11:54 AM

Page 1

Emolovee Name

Baker, John H

Baker, John H

Baker, John H

Baker, John H

Baker, John H

Baker, John H

Baker, John H

Baker, John H

Baker, John H

Baker, John H

Baker, John H

Baker, John H

Baker, John H

Baker, John H

Baker, John H

Baker, John H

Hare, LuAnn

Hare, LuAnn

Hare, LuAnn

Hare, LuAnn

Hare, LuAnn

Hare, LuAnn

HEUSINKVELD, PATRICK

HEUSINKVELD, PATRICK

HEUSINKVELD, PATRICK

HEUSINKVELD, PATRICK

NASH, SUSAN J

RIDDLE, LARRY

RIDDLE, LARRY

RIDDLE, LARRY

RIDDLE, LARRY

scHMrDl REBECCA

scHMrDl REBECCA

SCHMIDT, REBECCA

SCHMIDI REBECCA

SCHMIDI REBECCA

SCHMIDT, REBECCA

scHMrDl REBECCA

$371,68

$0.00

$0.00

$168.42

$34.8s

$11.62

$737.ss

$12.s0

$383.30

$23.23

$644.63

$0.00

$0.00

$12.s0

$34.8s

$603.98

$0.00

$423.89

$396.36

$0.00

$341.31

$330,30

$39.96

$379.62

$229.77

$74.93

$724.80

$279.72

$0.00

$119.88

$0.00

$1,041,52

$137.9s

$2s,00

$2s.00

$193.13

$137.9s

$841,s0

27 75

16

0

0

7.25

1,5

0.5

31.75

0

16.5

1

0

0

0

1.5

26

0

19.25

18

0

15

2

19

11.5

3.75

15.5

40

L4

0

6

0

37.75

5

0

0

7

5

30.5

$8,781.70



Environmental
Water Services

Operations &
Maintenance

Water & Wastewater
Services

City Of Wykoff
Monthly Council Report

Report for the Month of November 2025

Completed DMR no limit exceedances.

Completed rounds, checks and process control.
Conducted MLSS checks.

Checked biological activity under microscope.

Cleaned & Loaded Sludge drying bed.

Spoke to Minnesota pump regarding lift station service.

Assisted with 6 Locates.

Met with Streets Committee
Review lateral repair at Stephus residence S main St.

Met with Joe Oconnell AA excavating.
Cleaned headworks area pulled screenings.

Cleaned Office Area.

Monitored plant during heavy rain events 0 power outages.

Reviewed l&l lateral video.

Ordered and installed Chlorinator head in well house.

1.)

2.1

3.)

4.1

s.)

6.)

7.)

8.)

s.)

10.)

11.)

12.)

13.)

t4.l
1s.)



Dell Latitude 5420 14" FHD Business Laptop computer,
11th Gen lntel Quad-core i5, 16GB DDR4 RAM , slzcB
SSD, HDMI, Windows 11 pro (Refurbished)
Price: $360.00



!! winaowstt

Microsoft

l)roAMDiI

RYZEN

5

Lenovo v15 Laptop - special Business Edition - 15.6 FHD
-AMD Ryzen 57520U (Beats i7-116sGZ) - 16GB Memory
- 1TB PCle ssD - Long Battery Life - Military-Grade
Durability - Win 11 Pro
Price: $649.00



Dell Latitude 5510 Laptop pc, 15.6", lntel core i5-10310u
1Oth Gen Processor, l OGB Ram, 256G8 NVMe SSD,
Webcam, Type C, HDMI Windows 11 pro, Silver
(Refurbished)
Price: $339.00



HP EliteBook 830 G8 rouchscreen Laptop, 13.3" Full HD
Business Notebook, 11th core ,7-11g5G7, 16GB RAM,
512G8 SSD, Backlit Keyboard, HDMI, CAM, Windows
11 Pro(Refurbished)
Price: $449.00



L5

LAND USE PERMIT APPLICATION

CITY OF WYKOFF 3pp5 j \6
It is recommended that all applicants contact the Zoning Office prior to filling out the application to
make sure that this proposed project is feasible, lt is imperative that all instructions and regulations be
read carefully before submitting this application.

(1) Name of all Landowners: kn , t Wien+rs/a-AZ phone *, *r7-dSt - V Sll
bJ',etn^uttdao Phone * %7^ast - 7€a2

\0

:]-oJt

Phone #:

Mailing Address

Property Address
Address City State 7ip

(if different from mailing) Address

(2) Parcel #:

City State

(3): Legal Description (from deed, abstract or

zip

Recorders Office):
Section:

Have you started work on this project?
ls there a driveway access to this property?
ls this project located under a power line?

: tJyt,co ${ (5) Range:(4): Township

Yes: No: X
Yes: X No: FYes:- No: X

Proposed Project l2'Y/ro' u-li\ilv s LpL Total# of bedrooms
(New home, addition, garage, utility shed, decks, pergola, etc).
Estimated cost:{lcbo ?s permit #

(To be filled out by the Zoning Office)

wldth
Basement

L't Level

2nd Level

Attached Garage

Porch or Deck

fe+el-5quare-Ftrotag€ Sh€J.
Height 1t

trt6'

X

X

X

X

X

X I9 J-s6 f*+



NO WORK MAY BEGIN UNTIL A P€RMIT IS OBTAIN D. IF IA/ORK HAS BEGUN ON TI.IH PROJECT BEFORE

A PERMIT IS ISSUED, A S25O.OO LATE FEE MUST BE pAlD lN ADDITION TO THE PERMIT FEE. The
projects are assessed S10,00 per 100 square feet of living space; new dwellings, dwelling additions,
porches, decks, attached garages, dwellings being moved in and mobile or manufactured homes. All
other structures are assessed at 57,50 per 1oo square feet. A minimum of Sg,00.
LATE FEE s2s0.00

{7}rorAl FEE (NO REFUNDS)

SITE INSPECTIONS ARE REQUIRED FOR ALL NEW DWELLINGS: The footings must be dug and
inspected before the actual construction of the dwelling may begin.

I hereby certify that the information contained herein is correct and agree to the proposed work in
accordance with the provisions of the Ordinances of the City of Wykoff and the Statues of the State of
M innesota.

(8) Signatures of All Landowners(;{+*
me

Name

Send all correspo ndence to:
City of Wykoff Zoning Office
P.O. Box 2L8

217 Gold St. N.

Wykoff, MN 55990

507-352-40tL
FAX 507 -3s2-241.5

Ema i l: wykoff @arvig. net

to- e7^Js
Date

/cl-& F,(
Date

Date
ffi^

Approve )a Denied

R,r^ f;n '-
Signature of Council Member

Signature of Council Member

Date Permit #



NEW CONSTRUCTION PERMIT DRAWING
Dwelling or Dwelline Addition Drawins

For New Construction of a Dwelling or Addition a drawing must be completed, or a Copy of the plan

provided, including Dimension Measurements.
(See examples on Pages 5 & 6)

3a*/ ' J.1

IG,

/b'

lq-g \,1'r^ &
5o%

Nn b

fV\orra,b lc U+\\;+ J s heJ^



NEW CONSTRUCTION PERMIT DRAWING
Dwellins or Dwelline Addition Drawine

For New Const onofa prryelling or Additio

ft1fifu0, inctuding

1't ov a bl€-

shed

n a drawing must be completed, or a Copy of the Plan

Dimension Measurements.
(See examples on Pages 5 & 6)

Jq'

lbl

+ll'+)A
lor

\
.Np

u
'c



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-20
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A DONATION TO THE CITY

WHEREAS' the City of Wykoff is generally authorized to accept donations of real and personal
property pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 465.03 et seq. for the benefit of its citizens and
is specifically authorized to accept gifts.

WHEREAS, the following persons and entities have offered to contribute funds for the Fire
Dept and the New Ballf,reld

Name of Donor
Craig and Cynthia Schultz EMS
Craig and Cynthia Schults Fire Dept.

Amount
$1000
$1000

WHEREAS, all such donations have been contributed to the city for the Wykoff Fire
Department and First Responders

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is appropriate to accept the donations offered.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
Wykoff, MINNESOTA AS FOLLOWS:

1. The donation described above are accepted and shall be used to establish andlor operate
services either alone or in cooperation with others, as allowed by law.

Roll Call Vote:
Ryan Breckenridge
Barb Fate
Jane Baker
Missy Musel
Jelf Hare

Passed by the City Council of Wykoff, Minnesota this lOth day of November ,2025

Mayor

Attested:

City Administrator



C ityha I I @ c ityofwykoff .s ov

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:
Attachments:

Sara Mensink <sara@visitbluffcountry.com>
Thursday, October 23,20251:20 PM
cityha I I @cityofwykoff.gov
Early Bird Special -2026-2027 Visit Bluff Country Magazine
O n I i ne.C ityofWykoff ( 1 ). p n g; C ityofWykoff.2 5. pdf

Hello Becky,

I hope you're enjoying this crisp fall dayl

We're already preparing the 2026-2027 edition of Visit Btuff Country Magazine, scheduled for publication
in April 2026.

Our magazine continues to grow each year, with 50,000 copies distributed to more than 1,000 locations
across NE lowa, NW Illinois, Southern Minnesota, and SW Wisconsin.

Over the years, we've introduced exciting new features our readers love-such as the Brewery, Winery &
Distillery Fan Favorites (pages 22-23), the Car Show Schedule (pages 54-55), several regional maps, and
of course, the Best of the Best Awards (pages 2-4). Advertisers with a 1/+-page full-color ad or larger are
automatically eligible to be voted on by readers in the Best of the Best Awards-just one of the many
perks of advertising with us,

lAdvertising ratesl
LDistribution detai lsl
lCurrent mag_azinel

Early Bird Special: Prepay by December 3L, ZO2S and save!

Your l/2-page ad from the current issue is attached, With the early bird discount, renewal is 9599.

As an added bonus, you can run an online ad on Visit Bluff Countrv for only $99 for the entire year when
combined with your print ad, Attached is your current online ad.

We'd love to include you again in this next magazinel Would you like to renew your ads for the upcoming
ed ition?

Sm* hflnusmw I Slrnsrnnsor,r

$f ISU $1, Anffionf 5t, Prestua MlrJ

@ trisitblu ffcou nt ry,to m

(! ror- 768-zt 5t ,ld,ufi ,,urr country



CITY OF WYKOFF

QU N PRESENTED TO COUNCIL M BERS:

ao

DATE l0-.10- ar

REASON FOR PHONE VOTE:

VOTING IN FAVOR: Te[f [\^r

fV\iasq rY\

o

txs€-

VOTING AGAINST

DATE ENTERED INTO THE OFFICIAL MINUTES

Signature City Ad ministrator Date



& aq;n"
M ETE R I NG mro [?t'f,{[iS#S"rutions
TECHNOLOGY 99.sry9.-ns,soruno,rs TtS?eii"?v,.;3'Jo''B?'

Burnsville MN 55337
United States

mEst eta

Customer

Wykoff, City of
217 North Gold Street
Wykoff MN 55990
United States

Expires

11/16t2025

Quantity Item

TOTAL

Sales Rep

Lee Martin

$412.33

#EST4360

8t18/2025

Expires: 1111612025

Amount

$19s.00

$189.00

$384.00

$28.33

$412.33

ES5/8X3/4PGALHRE25TT
5/8" x3/4" Plastic E-Series Meter; Gallon HRE; 25'Wire with Twist
Tight; Piggyback Label

UGORIONSEO8TT
orion 5E Module; 8" Twist Tight; 64394-020 Wall Mount Bracket

*Pricing subJect to change due to unforeseen increases in import costs

Rate

$19s.00

$189.00

Subtotal

Tax Total (7.38o/ol

Total

1of 1



Resolution 2025-19 Adopting Assessment

WHEREAS, pursuant to proper notice duly given as required by law, the council has met and heard
and passed upon all objections to the proposed assessment for the 2025 Street and Utility
lmprovement for the City of Wykoff, the improvement of Bartlett Street East, Line Street North and
the homes adjacent to the main sewer line between Gold Street and Line Street south of Barflett
and north of Front Street,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF WYKOFF, MINNESOTA:

1' Such proposed assessment, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, is
hereby accepted and shall constitute the special assessment against the lands named therein, and
each tract of land therein included is hereby found to be benefited by the proposed improvement in
the amount of the assessment levied against it.

2' Such assessment shall be payable in equal annual installments extending over a period of 1b
years, the first of the installments to be payable on or before the first Monday in Janu"ry 2026, and
shall bear interest at the rate of 6.25 percent per annum from the date of the adoption of this
assessment resolution. To the first installment there shall be added interest on the entire
assessment from the date of this resolution until December 31 , 2026. To each subsequent
installment, when due, there shall be added interest for one year on all unpaid installments.

3' The owner of any property so assessed may, at any time prior to certification of the assessment
to the county auditor, pay the whole amount of the assessment on such property, with interest
accrued to the date of payment, to the county auditor, except that no interest shall be charged if the
entire assessment is paid within 30 days from the adoption of this resolution; and he/she may, at
any time thereafter, pay to the Fillmore County Auditor the entire amount of the assessment
remaining unpaid, with interest accrued to December 31 of the year in which such payment is made.
Such payment must be made before November 15, or interest will be charged through December
31 of the next succeeding year.

4. The clerk shall forthwith transmit a certified duplicate of this assessment to the county auditor
to be extended on the property tax lists of the county. Such assessments shall be collected and paid
over in the same manner as other municipal taxes.'

Motion by Jane Baker and seconded by Jeff Hare to adopt the resolution.

Those voting in favor: Jeff Hare, Jane Baker and Ryan Breckenridge

Those Voting Against: None

Abstaining: Missy Musel

Not Present: Barb Fate

Adopted by the council on this 20th day of October 2025.



RESOLUTION NO. 2025.19
EXHIBIT 1

Parcel Description Service
See Addendum

(STATE OF MINNESOTA

coI-rNTY oF FILLMORE) ) ss. Authentication certificate

I, the undersigned, being the duly of the City of Wykoff certifu that the attached Resolution
of the City Council adopting a(n) aid charges under the Wykoff ordinance, is a true copy of
the original, of which is on file at

Dated this lOth day of November 2025

City Clerk
City of Wykoff

Ryan Breckenridge, Mayor

Rebecca Schmidt, City Administrator



s/s Ryan Breckenridoe

Mayor

s/s Rebecca Schmidt,

City Administrator

Meeting was adjourned at 7:3G p.m

Adjournment

cretary Date of approval



2025-22

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING UNPAID CHARGES

WHEREAS, pursuant to proper notice duly given as required by law, the City Council has met, heard, and
passed upon all objections to the proposed certifications of unpaid charges foi municipal fees and utilities; and

WHEREAS, the amounts of bad debt have been minimized through diligent collection efforts by staff.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WYKOFF,
MINNESOTA AS FOLLOWS:

Such proposed certification of unpaid charges, a copy of which is hereby attached as Exhibit 1 and made apart
hereof, is hereby accepted and shall constitute a lien against the lands named herein

The owner of the affe_cted property may, atany time prior to certification of unpaid charges to the County
Auditor, pay the whole of the certified unpaid charges on such property, with interest accrued to date of
payment, to the City Clerk, except that no interest shall be chargedif the entire certified amount is paid within
thirty (30) days from the adoption of the resolution. The taxpayer may at any time thereaft er,pay the City Clerk
or County Auditor, the entire amount certified and remaining unpaid. Such payment must be made before
November 30,2025.

The clerk shall forthwith transmit a certified copy of this certification role to the County Auditor to be extended
on the property tax lists of the county and such certified unpaid charges shall be collectld and paid over in the
same manner as property taxes
Motion by , second by
Roll Call Vote:
All in Favor: All
Opposed: None
Absent:
Passed by the City Council of Wykoff, Minnesota this lOth day of Novemb er 2025.

Ryan Breckenridge, Mayor

Rebecca Schmidt, City Administrator

CITY OF WYKOFF



RESOLUTION NO. 2025.22
EXHIBIT 1

Certification Listins Parcel Description Service Amount
See Addendum

(STATE OF MINNESOTA

COLINTY oF FILLMORE) ) ss. Authentication cerrificate

I,lhe undersigned, being the duly qualified City clerk of the City of Wykoff, certiSu that the attached Resolution
of the City Council adopting a(n) certification for unpaid charges undei the Wykoff Ordinance, is a true copy of
the original, of which is on file at the City of Wykoff.

Dated this 10th day of November 2025

City Clerk
City of Wykoff

Ryan Breckenridge, Mayor

Rebecca Schmidt, City Administrator



AREA 2 - FIRE HALL SANITARY SEWER
WYKOFF COMMONS,LLC

KAITLYN M WHITE

REGGIEA&MELISSAMUSEL

DENNIS & PHYLLIS SKOGSTAD

ALEXANDER E LUCAS

KALEB & JILLIAN HIMLI

AREA 1 . LINE STREET & BARTLETT
STREET
MUNDFROM PROPERTIES LLC

MUNDFROM PROPERTIES LLC

MUNDFROM PROPERTIES LLC

MUNDFROM PROPERTIES LLC

WYKOFF COMMONS,LLC

WYKOFF COMMONS,LLC

WYKOFF COMMONS,LLC

JARED MEISNER

MAGGIE ERICKSON

MAGGIE ERICKSON

ANTHONY J MCCLIMON & ANNIE M MCCLIMON

ANTHONY J MCCLIMON & ANNIE M MCCLIMON

TRI-STATE COMMERCIAL ROOFING LLC

Deliquent Utility Bill Assessment

Jared Meisner

Emity Moger

James McHan

Mike Shaw

JJN Properties Lot # 10

JJN Properties Lot#12

JJn Properties Lot #2

240 LINE ST N

234 LINE ST N

226 LINE ST N

220 LINE ST N

214 LINE ST N

215 GOLD ST N

313 LINE ST N

311 LINE ST N

309 LINE ST N

307 LINE ST N

201 BARTLETTSTW

245 GOLD ST N

303 GOLD ST N

118 BARTLETTSTW

118 BARTLETTSTW

310 LINE ST N

310 LINE ST N

115 FILLMORE STW

246 SOUTH LINE ST

234 LINE ST N, PO BOX 192

226 LINE ST N, PO BOX 261

812 2ND AVE NW

215 GOLD ST N

1OO7 BUCKNELL CT

1OO7 BUCKNELL CT

1OO7 BUCKNELL CT

1OO7 BUCKNELL CT

246 SOUTH LINE ST

246 SOUTH LINE ST

246 SOUTH LINE ST

303 GOLD ST N

1 18 BARTLETT ST W

1 18 BARTLETT ST W

29383 COUNTY 5

29383 COUNW 5

1 1 17 BROADWAY AVE SW

POBox 772

PO Box 44

617 Broadway Str N #7A

PO Box 292

590 GreatWestern Str

590 GreatWestern Str

590 GreatWestern Str

WYKOFF

WYKOFF

WYKOFF

WYKOFF

ROCHESTER

WYKOFF

SPRING VALLEY

SPRING VALLEY

SPRING VALLEY

SPRING VALLEY

WYKOFF

WYKOFF

WYKOFF

WYKOFF

WYKOFF

WYKOFF

WYKOFF

WYKOFF

SPRING VALLEY

300042000

300043000

3000214000

300046000

300047000

300060000

300265000

300264000

300263000

300262000

30001 4000

300230000

300054000

300052000

300041 000

300041 000

30004001 0

300040000

300039000

soooszooo $

300051000 $
300011080 $
300123000 $
300226000 $
300226000 $
300226000 $

$ 6,045.21

$ 5,+69.+8

$ 5,+69.+8

$ 5,949.26

$ 10,555.14

$ 21,398.14

$ 1,439.34

$ 6,333.08

$ 14,873.15

$ 4,797.79

$ 4,797J9

$ 4,797.79

$ g,sgs.sg

$ 1,995.40

$ 1,995.40

$ 1,995.40

$ 1,995.40

$ 1,995.40

$ 1,995.40

459.79

770.35

4r2.80
448.64

249.20

686.41

672.69

MN

MN

MN

MN

MN

MN

MN

MN

MN

MN

MN

MN

MN

MN

MN

MN

MN

MN

MN

55990

55990

55990

55990

55901

55990

55975

55975

55975

55975

55990

55990

55990

55990

55990

55990

55990

55990

55975 Paid in Futt

303

307

721

118

501

501

501

Gotd Str N

Gol.d Str N

CentenniaI Str E

Sitver Str N

Fittmore Str # 10

Fittmore Str # 12

Fittmore Str # 2

Wykoff

Wykoff

SpringVattey

Wykoff

SpringVal.tey

SpringVal.tey

SpringVattey

MN 55990

MN 55990

MN 55975

MN 55990

MN 55975

MN 55975

MN 55975



OF WYKOFF

100 SERIES - SAIARIES BI'DGETATI/TT FIE

110 Administration/Supervision/Manage

146 Other Salary Payments

3OO SERIES - PURCHASED SERVICES

S 28,ooo.oo Construction Labor

BUDGETAMT i\JA BUDGET NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION

303
nclude contractor's

Federal Contracts/portion of each up to SZ5,OO0

304 of each exceeding

Consulting Fees/Fees for Services

Federal

30s

CODES

4OO SERIES - SUPPU€S/MATERIAE - Consumabte
and Expendable fterns: Not capital eipenditures
or capital equipment.

BUDGETAIvIT r'iA BUDGTTNARRATIVEDESCR|PTION

407
Supplies - Non-lnstructional - example: office
supplies, computer supplies, small computer S z,soo.oo

455
Non-instructional non-ca pita lized tech supplies
used with hardware/software. CDs, flash driveg
cables, monitor stands

5 s,ooo.oo

OBJECT
500 SERIES Equipment -Capital Eguipment has
useful live beyond one year ($5,000 value if fed)
or LIA's capitalization

BUDGETAMT .1;t BUDGET NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION

s05

S o,soo.oo

or more $5,000 or LEA capitalization

510 Site or Grounds Acquisition

520

530

s

Non-instructional Technology Software - software

s

Professional Fee for renderings/ floor plans

s90 Other Capital

etc.

899

Building Acquisition or Construction

{7"50 will be donated labor)

Other Equipment Purchased - not technology

OBJECT 8(X) SERIES - Other Expenditures

Expenditures

GRANTAMOUNT:

NAME:

CFDA NUMBER:
GRANT OPPORruNITY TITI.E:

l 
Other wtisceltaneous Expenditures - must identify

lspecific 
expenditure in order to be considered for

iapprov-al

end of

Computers and accessories to be purchased from MN State Surplus

s

TOTAI GRANI REqUFST

BUDGETUNE DESCRIMON

not

and

ji.a

S 77,6so.oo

Library bookshelves, neling; counters, area, security fire
listed above

BUD.GETAMI NA BT,DGETNARRATIVEDESCRIPTION

S 7s,2so.oo

& tndirect

S rso,ooo.oo

$ soo,ooo.oo

make entrance and bathrooms ADA compliant, roof repairs

replacemen! HVAC Rooftop Unit, Updated Duct work,



STATE OF MINNESOTA GRANT CONTRACT AGREEMENT

Minnesota Multi-Purpose community Facitity Project to support Community Revitalization

connectedness and Equity by promoting Education, work, ond Heatth

This Grant contract Agreement is between the state of Minnesota, acting through its
commissioner of the Minnesota Department of Education (,,state,,), and

Under Minn. Stat. 5 168.97 and the Coronavirus Projects Fund, estab,lished by section 604 of
the Social Security Act, as added by Section 9901 of the American Rescue plan Act of 2o2t,
Public Law No, Lt7-2 (March 1-1-, 2021) as awarded to the State from the United States

Department of Treasury (Treasury), the State is ernpowered to enter into this grant contract
agreement.

2' The State has a need to implement essential capital projects that facilitate access to work,

education, and health monitoring-including remote access-as part of the response to the
public health emergency caused by the coronavirus disease (covlD-1g). These projects will
directly support recovery efforts by enhancing and expanding infrastructure vital for
continued participation in these critical areas, with lasting impact beyond the pandemic by

supporting investments in capital assets aimed at addressing disparities in access to
essential services; and delivering modern infrastructure solutions, including reliable and

affordable high-speed broadband internet, necessary for equitable access to work,

education, and healthcare.

3' The Grantee represents that it is duly qualified and agrees to perform allservices described

in this agreement to the satisfaction of the State.



Grant Contract Agreement

1' Term of Grant contract Agreement - This Agreement shall, unless earlier terminated in

accordance with any of the provisions contained herein, remain in full force and effect for
the time period starting on the effective date hereof and ending on the date that
corresponds to the date established by adding a time period equal to L25% of Useful Life of
the Real Property and, if applicable, Facility to the date on which the Real property and, if
applicable, Facility is first used for the purpose set forth in Section 2.03 after such effective
date' lf there are no uncured Events of Default as of such date this Agreement shall
terminate and no longer be of any force or effect, and the state Entity shall execute

whatever documents are needed to release the Real Property and, if applicable, Facility
from the effect of this Agreement and the Declaration.

L.1 Effective Date:

undef Minn. Stat.6158.98. Subd E rrvhinharrar ic trrar Per Minn. Stat.SL6B.98, Subd. 5,

the Grantee must not begin work until this grant contract agreement is fully executed

and the State's Authorized Representative has notified the Grantee that work may

commence. Per Minn'Stat.S16B.98 Subd. 7, no payments will be made to the Grantee

until this grant contract agreement is fully executed.

1'2 Expiration Date: December 3!,2026,or untilall obligations have been satisfactorily
fulfilled, whichever occurs first. Funds must be expended, and projects must reach

substantial completion before December 3j,, 2026.

a. Substantial completion is defined as the date for which the project can fulfill
the primary operations that it was designed to perform, delivering services to
end-users.

b. At substantial completion, service operations and management systems

infrastructure must be operational.

L'3 Survivalof Terms: The following clauses survive the expiration or termination of this
grant contract agreement: g. Liability; L0. state Audits; 13. Government Data

Practices and lntellectual property Rights; 16. publicity and Endorsement; L7.



Governing Law, Jurisdiction and Venue; r.9. Data Disclosure; and 25. program

lncome

2. Grantee's Duties

The Grantee, who is not a state employee, will:

2'1The Grantee must comply with applicable grants management policies (Minn. stat. $

t6B'97, subd.4(a)(1)). specific duties are outrined in crause a.1(a).

2'2The Grantee has made application to the State for the purpose of administering the
capital Projects Fund in the manner described in the Grantee's Application, which is

incorporated into this grant contract agreement by reference.

2.3 The Grantee is awarded funds to:

1' lnvest in capital assets that enable work, education, and health monitoring.

Address a critical need resulting from or exacerbated by COVID-j.9.

2. Serve a critical community need.

2.4 Additional Requ irements:

a. Grantee shall submit invoices for services rendered no more frequently than

bi-weekly once per month or no less than once per quarter in accordance

with the approved budget and scope of work. See reporting schedule in

paragraph a.Zbl

b' Submit an interim progress report as requested by the State no later than

July 15, 2026, f or all activities from the beginning of the grant to June 30,

2026.

c. Submit a final progress report as requested by the State no later than

January 30,2027, for all activities of the grant.

d. Maintain a grant ledger and supporting documentation (e.g., UFARS for
school districts);

e. Follow procurement laws and ensure vendors are eligible and not debarred;

f. Undergo a pre-award risk assessment prior to award execution;



g. Undergo grant monitoring once (if grant >sso,Ooo) or annuaily (if

>Szso,ooo);

h' Agree to participate in a minimum of one (1) site visit per project year, to be

conducted by MDE, The purpose of the site visit is to assess program

implementation, progress toward goals, compliance with grant terms and

conditions, and to provide technical assistance as needed. The Grantor will
coordinate with the Grantee to schedule the visit at a mutually agreeable

time. Additionalsite visits may be conducted atthe discretion of the Grantor
i. Per uniform administrative requirements for federal awards, program

income generated from funded projects during the grant performance

period, or prior to January L,2oz7, must be used for the purposes and under

the conditions of the federal award. The U.s. Department of the Treasury,s

Capital Projects Fund prescribes the additive approach to program income

for multi-purpose community facilities. For program income and other
related definitions, please see 2 CFR 200.307(e)(2)

a. Program lncome Reporting - Per uniform administrative requirements

for federal awards, program income generated from funded projects

during the grant performance period must be used for the purposes

and under the conditions of the federal award. The U.S, Department

of the Treasury's capital projects Fund prescribes the ,,additive,,

approach to program income for multi-purpose community facilities.

2.5 Provisions for Contracts and Sub-grants

a. Contract Provisions. The Grantee must include in any contract and sub-grant,

in addition to provisions that define a sound and complete agreement, such

provisions that require contractors and sub-grantees to comply with

applicable state and federal laws. Along with such provisions, the Grantee

must require that contractors performing work covered by this grant be

following all applicable oSHA regulations, especially the federal Hazardous



waste operations and Emergency Response standards (2g cFR 1g10.120 and

29 CFR 1926.6s).

b' lneligible Use of Grant Funds. The dollars awarded under this grant contract

agreement are grant funds and shall only be used by Grantee and not be

awarded by Grantee to third parties as grant funds

c. Job Listing Agreements. Minn Stat. S Lt6L.66,subd.L, requires a business or
private enterprise to list any vacant or new positions with the state

workforce center if it receives SZOO,OOO or more a year in grants from the

State. lf applicable, the business or private enterprise shall list any job

vacancy in its personnel complement with Minnesotaworks.net at

www.minnesotaworks.net as sodn as it occurs.

d. Payment of Contractors and Subcontractors. The Grantee must ensure that

all contractors and subcontractors performing work covered by this grant are

paid for their work that is satisfactorily completed.

2.6 Debarment and Suspension Certification: (lf applicable)

a, The Grantee agrees to follow the President's Executive Order t254g and the

implementing regulation "Non-procurement Debarment and Suspension:

Notice and Final Rule and lnterim Final Rule," found at 53 FR i.gl_gg, May 26,

L988, as amended at 60 FR 3304L, June 26, i.995, including Appendix B,

"Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, lneligibility and Voluntary

Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transactions;" unless excluded by law or

regulation. Evidence that contractors are not debarred will be maintained

over the life of the grant.

3. Time: The grantee must comply with all the time requirements described in this grant

agreement. ln the performance of this grant contract, time is of the essence.



4. Consideration and payment

4'1 consideration: The state will pay for all services performed by the Grantee under
this grant contract as follows: performed by the Grantee under this grant contract
agreement as follows:

a' compensation - The Grantee will be paid according to the breakdown of costs in
Exhibit B, which is attached and incorporated into the Grant contract Agreement.

b' Total obligation 'The total obligation of the state for all compensation and

reimbursements to the Grantee under this grant contract agreement will not
eXCged : li'i !t 'irt ,''i rr'l' i ri !'r ., 

.

4.2 Payment

a' lnvoices: The State will promptly pay the Grantee after the Grantee presents

an itemized invoice for the services actually performed and the State,s

Authorized Representative accepts the invoiced services. lnvoices must be

itemized, submitted no more than bi-weekly, and approved by the state,s

representative' The State will promptly pay the Grantee after the Grantee

presents an iternized invoice for the services actually performed and the
State's Authorized Representative accepts the invoiced services. At a

minirnum must be submitted timely and according to the following

schedule:

r october 30,2025, for any reimbursable expenses from the beginning

of the grant to September 30,2O2S;

. January 30,2026, for any reimbursabre expenses from october L,

2025, to December 31, 2025;

r April 30,2026, for any reimbursabre expenses from the January L,

2026,to March 3I,2026;

r July Ls,2026, for any reimbursabre expenses from the Aprir !, 2026,

toJune 30,2O26;

' September 30, 2o26, for any reimbursable expenses from the july L,

2026,to September 30,2026; and



. January 90,2027 , for any reimbursable expenses from october L,

2026, to December 3L, 2026.;

4'3 Budget Revisions: The grantee must receive prior written approval from MDE for
any budgetary changes of approved line item amounts greater than 10 percent of the
total grant award available for expenditure during the grant period. Total budget line-

item deviations exceeding L0 percent of the total award must be approved in writing by

MDE prior to incurring the expenditure, ln their request for approval the grantee must

include supporting information to justify why the change is necessary. MDE is not legally

obligated to approve expenditures incurred on budget line-item changes that exceed l-O

percent of the total award for which prior approval has not been granted. Grantee may

not incur expenditures within a budget line item that is not included in the approved

budget without the written approval of MDE

4.4 Federal Funds: Payments under this grant coRtract agreernent will be made from

federal funds obtained by the State through CFDA number Zt,O2g Coronavirus Capital

Projects Fund, CPFFN0179.

a. The Grantee is responsible for cornpliance with all federal requirements

imposed on these funds and accepts fullfinancial responsibility for any

requirements imposed by the Grantee's failure to comply with federal

requirements.

b' Funds made available pursuant to this grant contract agreement shall be

used only for expenses incurred in performing and accomplishing such

purposes and activities during the grant period described

above. Notwithstanding all other provisions of this grant contract

agreement, it is understood that any reduction or termination of Treasury

funds provided to the State may result in a reduction of available funds to

the Grantee.

c. Where provisions of the Grantee's Application are inconsistent with other

provisions of this grant contract agreement, the other provisions of this grant



contract agreement shall take precedence over the provisions of the

Application

4.5 Unexpended Funds: The Grantee must return to the State any unexpended funds

that have not been accounted for grant closeout.

5. Contracting and Bidding Requirements: Per Minn. Stat. 547i..345. grantees that are

municipalities as defined in Subd. L must follow the law.

5.L Supporting documentation of the bidding process utilized to contract services must

be included in the grantee's financial records, including support documentation justify a
single/sole source bid, if applicable.

5.2 For projects that include construction work of S25,o0O or more, prevailing wage

rules MAY apply per Minn. Stat. SS177,41through L77.44. These rules require that the
wages of laborers and workers should be comparable to wages paid for similar work in

the community as a whole.

o Eligible contractors: All Grantees are required to verify that all contractors,

subcontractors and sub-recipients are not'listed on the Federal publication

that lists debarred, suspended and ineligible contractors. Evidence of this

determination must be readily available to the State throughout the life of

the project.

5.3 The grantee must not contract with vendors who are suspended or debarred in MN:

https: " n.gov "trnin' sp vernment/suspended-debarred

5.4 The grantee must verify that neither the organization nor any of its principals are

listed on the SAM.gov Exclusions List prior to receiving federalfunds, by conducting a

search at https:/lsam.eov

6. Conditions of Payment: All services provided by the Grantee under this grant contract

agreement must be performed to the State's satisfaction, as determined at the sole discretion

of the State's Authorized Representative and in accordance with all applicable federal, state,

and local laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations. The Grantee will not receive payment for



AW

work found by the state to be unsatisfactory or performed in violation of federal, state, or local

7' Authorized Representatives: The state's Authorized Representative, or their successor, and
has the responsibility to monitor the Grantee's performance and the authority to accept the
services provided under this grant contract agreement. lf the services are satisfactory, the
State's Authorized Representative will certify acceptance on each invoice submitted for
payment.

The Grantee's Authorized Representative is :.:, ,) ,. . lf the Grantee,s Authorized
Representative changes at any time during this grant contract agreemen,t, the Grantee must
immediately notify the State.

8. Assignment, Amendments, Waiver, and Complete Agreement

8'1 Assignment: The Grantee shall neither assign nor transfer any rights or obligations

under this grant contract agreement.

8'2 Amendments: Any amendments to this grant contract agreement must be in writing
and will not be effective until it has been executed and approved bythe same parties

who executed and approved the original grant contract, or their successors in office.

8.3 Waiver: lf the state fails to enforce any provision of this grant contract agreement,

that failure does not waive the provision or the State's right to enforce it,

8.4 Grant contract Agreement Complete: This grant contract agreement contains all

negotiations and agreements between the State and the Grantee. No other

understanding regarding this grant contract, whether written or oral, may be used to

bind either party.



9' Liability: The Grantee must indemnify, save, and hold the state, its agents, and employees

harmless from any claims or causes of action, including attorney's fees incurred by the state,
arising from the performance of this grant contract agreement by the Grantee or the Grantee,s

agents or employees' This clause will not be construed to bar any legal remedies the Grantee

may have for the state's failure to fulfill its obligations under this grant contract agreement.

10' State Audits: Under Minn. stat. S L68.98, Subd.8, the Grantee's books, records, documents,

and accounting procedures and practices of the Grantee or other party relevant to this grant
contract agreement or transaction are subject to examination by the Commissioner of
Administration, by the State granting agency and/or the state Auditor or Legislative Auditor, as

appropriate, for a minimum of six years from the end of this grant contract agreement, receipt

and approval of all final reports, or the required period of time to satisfy all state and program

retention requirements, whichever is later

o Accounting methods must be in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles. The Grantee shall comply with the requirements of the Single Audit Act

Amendments of 1gg6 (p.1. L04-156). when a Grantee expends over s750,000 in federal

funds during their fiscal year, a single audit is required to be submitted for that year.

I The grantee shall maintain books, records, documents and other evidence pertaining to

the costs and expenses of implementing this application to the extent and in such detail

as will accurately reflect all gross costs, direct and indirect, of labor materials,

equipment, supplies, services and other costs and expenses of whatever nature.

r The grantee shall use generally accepted accounting principles.

r The grantee shall preserve all financial and cost reports, books of account and

supporting documents and other data evidencing costs allowable and revenues and

other applicable credits underthis award which are in the possession of the grantee and

relate to this award, for a period of no less than six years and the respective federal

requirements where applicable.



All pertinent records and books of accounts related to this award and subsequent

awards shall be preserved by the grantee for a period of six years subject to the
following criteria:

o The six-year retention period shall commence from the date of submission of the
final expenditure report.

o lf any litigation, claim, or audit is started before the expiration of the six-year
period, the records shall be retained until all litigation, claims or audit findings
involving the records have been resolved.

o The grantee agrees to cooperate in any examination and audit under the
provisions of this paragraph.

11' Financial Reconciliation: A financial reconciliation or desk review of reported expenditures
to supporting documentation will occur at least once during the award perriod on grants that
are at or exceed Ss0,o00' MDE will request supporting documentation for review and

reconciliation of at leasttwo (2) budget line-item expenditures based on a financial reporting
form (FRF) submitted by the grantee.

o MDE may request documentation before, during, or after monitoring visits.

r Financial documentation to support expenditures incurred under this award must be

maintained by the graRtee and provided to MDE upon request

12. Monitoring and Corrective Action: Pursuant to state regulations and guidelines, the State

shall monitor grantee performance annually. The Grantee will make all books, records,

documents, and accounting procedures and practices accessible for any monitoring. Monitoring
will be based on forms provided by the State. The monitor may be in person or a request for
information at any time during the grant and any time after grant closeout as needed.

The grantee will monitor the activities of the sub-recipient according to 2 cFR 5200.303 and 2

cFR 5200.331as necessary to ensure that the sub-award is used for authorized purposes, in

compliance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Sub-award;



and that sub-award performance goals are achieved. Pass-through entity monitoring of the sub-
recipient must include:

a' Reviewing financial and programmatic reports required by the pass-through entity.
b' Following-up and ensuring that the sub-recipient takes timely and appropriate

action on all deficiencies pertaining to the Federal award provided to the sub-

recipient from the pass-through entity detected through audits, on-site reviews, and

other means.

c' lssuing a management decision for audit findings pertaining to the Federal award
provided to the sub-recipient 2 CFR 5200.332 from the pass_through entity as

required by 2 CFR 5200.521 management decision.

13. Government Data practices and lntellectual property

L3'1 Data Practices: Governed by Minn. Stat. Ch. 13. The Grantee must notify the State

if it receives data requests.

' The Grantee and State must comply with the Minnesota Government Data

Practices Act, Minn. Stat. Ch. l-3, as it applies to all data provided by the State

under this grant contract, and as it applies to all data created, collected,

received, stored, used, maintained, or disseminated by the Grantee under

this grant contract agreement. The civil remedies of Minn. Stat. s13.0g_ apply

to the release of the data referred to in this clause by either the Grantee or

the State. lf the Grantee receives a request to release the data referred to in
this Clause, the Grantee must immediately notifythe State. The State will
give the Grantee instructions concerning the release of the data to the

requesting party before the data is released, The Grantee's response to the

request shall comply with applicable law,

13.2 ownership of Materiars and Inteilectuar property Rights

a. lntellectualProperty Rights: The State of Minnesota shallown all rights, title, and

interest in allthe intellectual property rights, including copyrights, patents, trade

secrets, trademarks and service marks in the works and documents created and



paid for under the award. works means all inventions, improvements,

d iscoveries (whether patenta bre), data bases, computer progra ms, reports,

notes, studies, photographs, negatives, designs, drawings, specifications,

materials, tapes and disks conceived, reduced to practice, created or originated

by the grantee, its employees, agents and subcontractors, either individually or
jointly with others in the performance of this award. works includes

"Documents." DocLlments are the originals of any databases, computer
programs, reports, notes, studies, photographs, negatives, designs, drawings,

specifications, materials, tapes, disks, or other mater.ials, whether in tangible or

electronic forms, prepared by the grantee, its employees, agents, or

subcontractors in the performance of this award. The documents will be the

exclusive property of the State of Minnesota and all such documents must be

immediately returned to the state br7 the grantee upon completion or

cancellation of the award. To the extent possible, those works eligible for

copyright protection under the United States Copyright Act will be deemed to be

"works for hire." The grantee assigns all right, title and interest it may have in

the works and the documents to the state of Minnesota. The grantee, at the

request of the state of Minnesota, shall execute all papers and perform all other

acts necessary to transfer or record the State of Minnesota's ownership interest

in the works and documents.

b. Notification: whenever any invention, improvement, or discovery (whether or

not patentable) is made or conceived for the first time or actually or

constructively reduced to practice by the grantee, including its employees and

subcontractors, in the performance of the award, the grantee will immediately

give the State of Minnesota's authorized representative written notice thereof,

and must promptly furnish the authorized representative with complete

information and/ or d isclosure thereon.

c' Representation:The grantee must perform allacts and take allsteps necessary

to ensure that allintellectual property rights in the works and documents are the



sole property of the state of Minnesota, and that neither the grantee nor its

employees, agents, or subcontractors retain any interest in and to the works and

documents. The grantee represents and warrants that the works and documents

do not and will not infringe upon any intellectual property of other persons or

entities,

i. Notwithstanding Liability clause 5, the grantee will indemnify; defend, to

the extent permitted by the Attorney General; and hold harmless the

state of Minnesota, at the grantee's expense, from any action or claim

brought against the state of Minnesota to the extent that it is based on a

claim that all or part of the works or documents infringe upon the

intellectual property rights of others.

ii. The grantee will be responsible for payment of all such claims, demands,

obligations, liabilities, costs, and damages, including but not limited to,

attorneyfees, lf such a claim oraction arises, or in the grantee,s orthe
state of Minnesota's opinion is likely to arise, the grantee, must at the

state of Minnesota's discretion, either procure for the state of Minnesota

the right or license to use the intellectual property rights at issue or

replace or modify the allegedly infringing works or documents as

necessary and appropriate to obviate the infringement claim. This

remedy of the state of Minnesota will be in addition and not exclusive of

other remedies provided by law.

14. Proceeds of a Sale. Upon the sale of the Grant Recipient's interest in the Real property and,

if applicable, the Facility the net proceeds thereof shall be disbursed in the following manner and

order.

a. The first distribution shall be to the Commissioner of Management and Budget in an

amount equal to the amount of the Grant actually disbursed, and if the amount of
such net proceeds shall be less than the amount of the Grant actually disbursed then

all of such net proceeds shall be distributed to the Commissioner of Management and

Budget.



b' The remaining portion, after the distribution specified in Section 3.03.4, shall be

distributed to pay in full any outstanding public or private debt incurred to acquire

the Grant Recipient's interest in or for the betterment of the Real property and, if
applicabre, the Facirity in the order of priority of such debt.

c' Any remaining portion, after the distributions specified in sections 3,03A and B, shall

be divided and distributed in proportion to the shares contributed to the acquisition

of the Grant Recipient's interest in or for the betterment of the Real property and, if
applicable, the Facilities by public and private entities, including the State Entity but
not including any private entity that has been paid in full, that supplied funds in either
real monies or like-kind contributions for such acquisition and betterment, and the
State Entity's distribution shall be made to the Commissioner of Management and

Budget. Such public and private entities may agree amongst themselves as to any

redistribution of such distributed funds.

The Grant Recipient shall not be required to pay or reimburse the state Entity for any funds above

and beyond the full net proceeds of such sale, even if such net proceeds are less than the amount

of the Grant actually disbursed.

15. Workers Compensation: The Grantee certifies that it follows Minn. Stat. S176.i-g1, Subd. 2,

pertaining to worker's' compensation insurance coverage, The Grantee's employees and agents

will not be considered State employees. Any claims that may arise under the Minnesota

Workers' Compensation Act on behalf of these employees and any claims made by any third
party as a consequence of any act or omission on the part of these employees are in no way the
State's obligation or responsibility.

16. Publicity and Endorsement

16.1 Publicity: Any publicity regarding the subject matter of this grant contract

agreement must identify the State as the sponsoring agency and must not be released

without prior written approval from the State's Authorized Representative. For

purposes of this provision, publicity includes notices, informational pamphlets, press



releases, research, reports, signs, and similar public notices prepared by or for the
Grantee individually or jointly with others, or any subcontractors, with respect to the
program, publications, or services provided resulting from this grant contract. All

projects primarily funded by state grant appropriations must publicly credit the State of
Minnesota, including on the grantee's website when practicable.

16'2 Endorsement: Grantee may not imply State endorsement of products/services.

17' Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and venue: Minnesota law, without regard to its choice-of-law
provisions, governs this grant contract agreement. venue for all legal proceedings out of this
grant contract agreement, or its breach, must be in the appropriate state or federal court with
competent jurisdiction in Ramsey County, Minnesota.

18. Termination

18.1 By State

a. Without Cause: The State may terminate this grant contract agreement

without cause, upon 30 days' written notice to the Grantee. Upon termination,

the Grantee will be entitled to payment, determined on a pro rata basis, for
services satisfactorily pe rformed,

b. With Cause: The State may immediately terminate this grant contract

agreement if the State finds that there has been a failure to comply with the
provisions of this grant contract, that reasonable progress has not been made or
that the purposes for which the funds were granted have not been or will not be

fulfilled' The state may take action to protect the interests of the state of
Minnesota, including the refusal to disburse additional funds and requiring the
return of all or part of the funds already disbursed.

L8'2 By Commissioner of Administration: The Commissioner of Administration may

immediately and unilaterally cancel this grant contract agreement if further
performance under the agreement would not serve agency purposes or is not in the
best interest of the State.



L8'3 Termination for lnsufficient Funding; The State may immediately terminate this
grant contract agreement if

Funding becomes unavailable or the continuation of this Agreement and

payments hereunder shall be subject to the availability of federal funds to the

state from the us rreasury under the prime Award. The state shall only be

required to make payments to the grantee to the extent that the US Treasury

makes payments to the State for allowable costs pertaining to this Agreement.

The State shall promptly notify the grantee, in writing, of any (i) termination of
the Prime Award or (ii) modification of funding available under the prime Award

that might negatively impact this subawar.d.

Funding for the coronavirus capital projects Fund (capital projects Fund),

established by section 604 of the social security Act (the statute), as added by

Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 202L (American Rescue plan) is

withdrawn by the U.S. Department of Treasury.

Termination must be by written or fax notice to the Grantee. The State is not

obligated to pay for any services that are provided after notice and effective date

of termination. However, the Grantee will be entitled to payment, determined

on a pro rata basis, for services satisfactorily performed to the extent that funds

are available. The state will not be assessed any penalty if the grant contract

agreement is terminated because of the decision of the Minnesota Legislature,

or other funding source, not to appropriate funds. The State must provide the

Grantee notice of the lack of funding within a reasonable time of the state,s

receiving that notice,



ln the Event of Cancellation: ln the event of any cancellation under this provision, the
Grantee shall cooperate fully with the State and help facilitate any transition for the
provision of services by a different vendor. Failure to cooperate with or withholding any

information or records requested by the State or a different vendor that impairs in any

way the transition of the provision of services shall constitute a material breach of this
grant contract agreement, subjecting Grantee to liability for all damages incurred by the
State resulting from such breach.

19. Data Disclosure: Under Minn. Stat. S 270C.65, subd. 3, and other applicable law, the
Grantee consents to disclosure of its social security number, federal employer tax identification
number, and/or Minnesota tax identification number, already provided to the state, to federal
and state tax agencies and state personnel involved in the payment of state obligations. These
identification numbers may be used in the enforcement of federaland state tax laws which
could result in action requiring the Grantee to file state tax returns and pay delinquent state tax
liabilities, if any.

20' Post Grant Reporting Requirements: The grantee will report to the state, in the manner as

requested by the State. The report will be due annually beginning after the end period of the
grant on December 31,2027. The grantee will continue to report annual for a period of 5 years

past the end of the grant through December 3t,2o3L Grantee shall use the reporting forms
provided by the State.

21' conflicts of lnterest: The state will take steps to prevent individual and organizational

conflicts of interest in reference to Grantees per Minn.stat,S16B.9g and Department of
Administration, office of Grants Management, Policy Number 08-01 conflict of lnterest policv

for state Grant-Makins (current Policies tab). when a conflict of interest concerning state
grant-making is suspected, disclosed or discovered, transparency shall be the guiding principle

in addressing it.

o ln cases where a potentialoractualindividualororganizationalconflict of interest is

suspected, disclosed, or discovered by the Grantee throughout the life of the grant



contract agreement, they must immediately notify the State for appropriate action

steps to be taken, as defined above.

The Grantee inust complete a conflict-of-lnterest Disclosure Form.

22' Federal Environmental standards: Unless the state indicates otherwise and prior to
release of funds, the Grantee is required to conduct an environmental review on project
activities to comply with the National Environmental policy Act of 1969 (NEpA), as amended.
Disbursement of funds from the state will not occur until state has issued an environmental
clearance to the Grantee.

r Grantee must maintain environmental review documentation and records and make

them available to the public.

23' Drug-Free Workplace (Awardees Other Than lndividuals) As required by the Drug-Free

Workplace Act of 1988, and implemented at 2 CFR, PartZOO,the grantee certifies that it will
continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

t. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's

workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation

of such prohibition;

2. Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about:

a. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

b. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug_free workplace;

c. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs;

and

d. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;

3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the

award be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (1);



4' Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (1) that, as a condition
of employment under the award, the employee will:

a. Abide by the terms of the statement; and,

b' Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal

drug statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such

conviction;

5' Notifying the agency, in writing, within l-0 calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (+)(b)from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such

conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position

title, to: Director, Grants Policy and oversight staff, U.s. Department of Education, 400

Maryland Avenue, S,W. (Room 3652, GSA Regional office Building No. 3), Washington,

DC20202-4248. Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected

award;

6' Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (a)(b), with respect to any emproyee who is so convicted:

a. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as

amended; or,

b' Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or

rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a federal, state or local

health, law enforcement or other appropriate agency;

7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through

implementation of paragraphs (Il, e), (3), (4), (5) and (6).

24. Use of out of State Contractors: The Grantee must comply with Minnesota Statutes,

Section 290.9705 by either:

a. Depositing with the State, eight percent of every payment made to non-

Minnesota construction contractors, where the contract exceeds 55O,0OO; or



b Receiving an exemption from this requirement from the Minnesota Department
of Revenue.

25' Program lncome: Per uniform administrative requirements for federal awards, program
income generated from funded projects during the grant performance period must be used for
the purposes and under the conditions of the federal award. The U.s. Department of the
Treasury's capital Projects Fund prescribes the "additive" approach to program income for
multi-purpose com munity facilities,

26' Procurement: The Grantee must maintain documentation that shows that professional

services were procured in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, Uniform Administrative

Requirements, Cost Principals, and Audit Requirements for Feder.al Awards. Services obtained
from an HRA, RDC, or nonprofit organization do not have to be procured by competitive

negotiation if exemption has been requested and approved by MDE, but contracts for these

services must only be on a cost reimbursement basis, accounted for in accordance with 2 CFR

Part 200.

27' Equal Employment & Section 3: Grantee must adhere to the Subparts A, C and D of the
Section 3 regulation s at24 cFR 75 if the financial assistance provided to the project exceeds a

threshold of 5200,000 in HUD program funding. lf the project is found to be a section 3 project,

requirements at 24 cFR 75.1-9 must be followed. The Grantee will report labor hours in the
Annual Report as describe d in 24 CFR 75.25(a), provide the qualitative efforts to assist low and

very low-income persons described at 24 cFR 75.25(b) if reporting benchmarks are not met,

must include Section 3 requirements and language in bidding documents and contracts, and

retain necessary Section 3 documentation as described in 24 CFR 7s.gi,. Additionally, the

Grantee will include The Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction

Contract Specifications (Executive Order LI246, as amended) in the bidding and contract

documents. Grantees will adopt an "Affirmative Contractor Outreach plan - Section 3, MBE

and WBE" which will outline how the Grantee will adhere to Section 3 requirements and will



promote the use of section 3 business concerns and women- or Minority-owned
Businesses. The plan will include a requirement that contractors and subcontractors will
complete the Section 3 and Women- or Minority-Owned Business Certification form.

28' Equal opportunity, Americans with Disabilities Act, and Minnesota Human Rights Act: The
Grantee agrees to comply with all nondiscrimination assurances described in: section 1gg of

; the

; and the Minnesota Human Riphts Act_

29' Build America, Buy America Act (BABAA): Treasury strongly encourages recipients to use

domestic procurement preferences wherever practicable. However, infrastructure projects

funded solely with cPF award funds are not subject to the Buy America preference

requirements set forth in section 70914 of the Build America, Buy America Act included in the
lnfrastructure lnvestment and Jobs Act, Pub. L. L17-58. CpF recipients may be otherwise
subject to the Buy America Preference requirements when CpF award funds are used on a

project in conjunction with funds from other federal programs that require compliance with the
Buy America Preference requirements. Recipients are advised to consult with the other federal
agencies administering federal financial assistance that is being blended or braided with CpF

funds regarding the applicability of the Buy America preference requirements.

1. STATE ENCUMBRANCE VERIFICATION

lndividual certifies thot funds hqve been encumbered as required by Minn.staf.s 164.15.

Signed:

Date:

SWIFT Contract/pO No(s):



2. GRANTEE

The Grantee certifies thot the oppropriate person(s) hos executed the grant controct ogreement
on beholf of the Grantee as required by appticoble articles, bylows, resolutions, or ordinonces.

Title

Date

Title:

Date

3. STATE OF MINNESOTA - DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

(wtTH DELEGATED AUTHORTTY)

Title

Date:

By

By

Grants coordinator: Taunya schleicher, Taunva.schleicher@state.mn.us ph: 651-5g2-gg36Authorized Representative: Patsy Lee, pltsv,lee@state.mn.us ph: 651-5gg -9412



Docusign Envelope lD: 1F71BE0F-6D6F-4581_827E_372AB4CDE541

STATE OF MINNESOTA

GRANT CONTRACT AGREEMENT

Swift Contract Number: 278488

1.2 Expiration Date.

A. May 1, 2027, or until all obligations have been satisfactorily fulfilled, whichever occurs first,

1'3 Survival of Terms. The following clauses survive the expiration or cancellation of this Grant Contract
Agreement: Liability; State Audits; Government Data Practices and lntellectual property; publicity and
Endorsement; Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue; and Data Disclosure.

Specifications, Duties, and Scope of Work

The parties will perform the services outlined in Exhibit A: Specifications, Duties, and Scope of Work.

Time

The Grantee must comply with all the time requirements described in this Grant contract Agreement. ln the
performance of this Grant Contract Agreement, time is of the essence and failure to meet a deadline date may
be a basis for a determination by the State's Authorized Representative that the Grantee has not complied with
the terms of the Grant Contract Agreement. The Grantee is required to perform all the duties cited within clause
two "Specifications, Duties, and Scope of Work" within the grant period. The state is not obligated to extend the
grant period.

G - Wykoff Waste Water Treatment plant (Sp825-034) - Commerce

MIHHESOTA

This Grant contract Agreement is between the state of Minnesota, acting through its Department of Commerce
("state") and city of wykoff, po Box 219, wykoff, MN, 55990 ("Grantee").

Recitals

Under Minn' Stat' $ 21"6C'02, subd, L, the State is empowered to enter into this Grant Contract Agreement. The State
seeks to stimulate the installation of solar energy systems on public buildings pursuant to MN statutes sec. 21,6c.377.
The Grantee represents that it is duly qualified and agrees to perform all services described in this Grant contract
Agreement to the satisfaction of the State.

Grant Contract Agreement

Term of Grant Contract Agreement

1.1 EffectiveDate.october3l',2o25,orthedatetheStateobtainsall requiredsignatures,whicheverislater

Per Minnesota statutes 5 168.98, subd. 5, the Grantee must not begin work until this Grant contract
Agreement is fully executed and the State's Authorized Representative has notified the Grantee that work may
commence.

Per Minnesota Statutes S 158.98 Subd. 7, no payments will be made to the Grantee until this Grant contract
Agreement is fully executed.

REV. 7.10.2025



Docusign Envelope lD: 1 F71 8E0F-6D6F-4581 -B27E-372AB4CDE541

Consideration and Terms of payment

The consideration for all services performed by the Grantee pursuant to this Grant Contract Agreement shall bepaid by the State as follows:

4'1 compensation. The total obligation of the state under this Grant contract Agreement, including all
compensation and reimbursements, is not to exceed Ninety-Two Thousand Nine Hundred Eighty-Eight dollars
($92,98s.001, which shall be paid in accordance with the teims outlined in Exhibit B: payment schedule, which isattached and incorporated into this Grant contract Agreement.

4'2 Invoices. Payments shall be made by the State after the Grantee's presentation of invoices for services
satisfactorily performed and the written acceptance of such services by the state's Authorized Representative.
lnvoices shall be submitted timely, with additional details as requested by the state, and according to the
following schedule: please refer to Exhibit B.

4'3 Retainage' No more than 95 percent of the amount due under this grant contract may be paid until
the final product of this grant contract has been reviewed by the State's Authorized Representative,
The balance due will be paid when the state's Authorized Representative determines that the Grantee
has satisfactorily fulfilled all the terms of this grant contract.

4'4 unexpended Funds. The Grantee must promptly return to the state any unexpended funds that have not been
accounted for in a financial report to the State.

Conditions of Payment

All services provided by the Grantee under this Grant contract Agreement must be performed to the state,s
satisfaction, as determined at the sole discretion of the State's Authorized Representative and in accordance
with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations, The Grantee will not receivepayment for work found by the State to be unsatisfactory or performed in violation of federal, state, or local
law.

Contracting and Bidding Requirements

The Grantee is required to comply with 
,

6'1 The Grantee and any subrecipients must comply with prevailing wage rures per Minnesota statutes ss 177,41through t77.SO, as applicable.

5'2 The Grantee and any subrecipients must not contract with vendors who are suspended or debarred by theStateofMinnesotaorthefederalgovernment:
Procurement.

6'3 The Grantee must maintain written standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and governing the
actions of its employees engaged in the selection, award and administration of contracts.

Authorized Representatives

7.1 The State's Authorized Representative is John-Michael Cross, Solar Coordinato r, iohn-
651-539-1020, or their successor, and has the responsibi ity to monitor the

Grantee's performance and the authority to accept the services provided under this G rant Contract Agreement

G - Wykoff Waste Water Treatment plant (SpBZ5-034) _ Commerce
REV. 7.10.2025



Docusign Envelope lD: 1 F71 8E0F-6D6F_4581 _B27E_3724B4CDE541

lf the services are satisfactory, the state's Authorized Representative will certify acceptance on each invoicesubmitted for payment.

7'2 The Grantee',s Authorized Representative is Rebecca schmidt, city Administrator, citvhall@citvofwvkoff.eov.
507'352-4011, or their successor' lf the Grantee's Authorized Representative changes at any time during thisGrant contract Agreement, the Grantee must immediatery notify the state.

7'3 The Grantee must clearly post on the Grantee's website the names of, and contact information for, theGrantee's leadership and the employee or other person who directly manages and oversees this Grant contractAgreement on behalf of the Grantee.

Assignment, Amendments, Waiver, and Contract Complete

8'1 Assignment' The Grantee may neither assign nor transfer any rights or obligations under this Grant ContractAgreement without the prior consent of the State and a fully executed agreement, executed and approved bythe authorized parties or their successors.

8'2 Amendments' Any amendment to this Grant contract Agreement must be in writing and will not be effectiveuntil it has been executed and approved by the ,r." p.iti", who executed and approved the original Grant
Contract Agreement or their successors.

8'3 Waiver' lf the state fails to enforce any provision of this Grant contract Agreement, that failure does not waive
the provision or its right to enforce it.

8'4 contract complete. This Grant Contract Agreement contains all negotiations and agreements between the
state and the Grantee. No other understanding regarding this Grant Contract Agreement, whether written or
oral, may be used to bind either party.

Subcontracting and Subcontract payment

9'1 A subrecipient is a person or entity that has been awarded a portion of the work authorized by this Grant
contract Agreement by Grantee, The Grantee must document any subaward through a formal legal agreement.
The Grantee must provide timely notice to the State of any subrecipient(s) prior to the subrecipient(s)
performing work under this Grant Contract Agreement.

9'2 The Grantee must monitor the activities of the subrecipient(s) to ensure the subaward is used for authorized
purposes; is in compliance with the terms and conditions of the subaward, Minnesota Statutes S 168.97, subd,4(a) (1) and other relevant statutes and regulations; and that subaward performance goals are achieved.

9'3 During this Grant contract Agreement, if a subrecipient is determined to be performing unsatisfactorily by the
State's Authorized Representative, the Grantee will receive written notification that the subrecipient can no
longer be used for this Grant Contract Agreement.

9'4 No sub agreement shall serve to terminate or in any way affect the primary legal responsibility of the Grantee
for timely and satisfactory performances of the obligations contemplated by the Grant contract Agreement.

9.5 The Grantee must pay any subrecipient in accordance with Minnesota statutes s 164.1_245.

9'6 The Grantee and any subrecipients must not contract with vendors who are suspended or debarred by the
State of Minnesota or the federal government,

G - Wykoff Waste Water Treatment plant (Sp825_034) _ Commerce
REV. 7.10.202s



Docusi gn Envelope lD : 1 F7 1 BE0F-6D6F-4581 _827E _37 2AB4CDES41

10 Liabitity

gents, y claims or
tate, a rant Contract
oYees. to bar any
to fulf ContractAgreement.

11 State Audits

Under the Grantee's books, records, documents, and accountinprocedures and practices relevant to this Gra nt Contract Agreement are subject to examination by theCommissioner of Administration, the State granting agency, the State Auditor, the Attorney Genera nd theLegis ative Auditor, as appropriate, for a m inimum of six years from the expiration or termination of this GrantContract Agreement, receipt and approval of all final reports, or the required period of time to s tisfy all Stateand program retention requirements, whic hever is later,

12 Government Data practices and lntellectual property Rights

12'1 Government Data Practices. The Grantee and state must comply with the Minnesota Government DataPractices Act,
contract, and der this grant

the Grantee, disseminated by

the data refer ee or the state. 
to the release of

lf the Grantee receives a request to release the data referred to in this clause, the Grantee must immediately
notify the state' The State will give the Grantee instructions concerning the release of the data to the requestingparty before the data is released. The Grantee's response to the requeit shall comply with applicable law.

t2'2 lntellectual Property Rights. The Grantee shall own all rights, title, and interest in allof the intellectualproperty rights, including copyrights, patents, trade secrets, trademarks, and service marks in the works anddocuments' The "works" means all inventions, improvements, discoveries (whether or not patentable),
databases, computer programs, reports, notes, studies, photographs, negatives, designs, drawings,
specifications, materials, tapes, and disks conceived, reduced to practice, created or originated by the Grantee,its employees, agents, and subcontractors, either individually or jointlywith others in the performance of thisgrant contract' "works" includes documents. The "documents" are the originals of any databases, computerprograms, reports, notes, studies, photographs, negatives, designs, drawings, specifications, materials, tapes,
disks, or other materials, whether in tangible or electronic forms, prepared by the Grantee, its employees,
agents, or subcontractors, in the performance of this grant contract.

t2'3 license to the state. subject to the terms and conditions of this grant contract, the Grantee hereby grants tothe state a perpetual, irrevocable, no-fee right and license to make, have made, reproduce, modify distribute,perform and otherwise use the works and documen:s for any and all purposes, in all forms and manners thatthe state, in its sole disffetion, deems appropriate. The Grantee shall upon the request of the state, execute allpapers and perform all other acts necessary, to document and secure said right and license to the works anddocuments by the state. At the request of the state, the Grantee shall permit the state to inspect the originaldocuments and provide a copy of any of the document to the state, without cost, for use by the state in any
manner the State, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate.

G - Wykoff Waste Water Treatment plant (SpB25-034) _ Commerce
REV. 7.10.2025



Docusign Envelope lD: 1 F7,t8E0F-6D6F-4S81_827E_372484CDE541

L2'4 obligations' Grantee represents and warrants that materials produced or used under this grant contract do
not and will not infringe upon any intellectual property rights of other persons or entities including but not
limited to patents, copyrights, trade secrets, trade names, and service marks and names. Grantee shall

se, from any action or claim brought against the State to
of the materials infringe upon the intellectualproperty
ayment of any and all such claims, demands, obligations,
ted to reasonable attorneys' fees arising out of this grant

contract, amendments and supplements thereto, which are attributable to such claims or actions,

lf such a claim or action arises, or in Grantee's or the state's opinion is likely to arise, Grantee shall, at the
State's discretion, either procure for the State the right or license to continue using the materials at issue or
replace or modify the allegedly infringing materials. This remedy shall be in addition to and shall not be
exclusive to other remedies provided by law.

13 WorkersCompensation

The Grantee certifies that it is in compliance with Minnesota Statutes S i.76.181, Subd. 2, pertaining to workers,
compensation insurance coverage. The Grantee's employees and agents will not be considered State employees.
Any claims that may arise under the Minnesota workers' compensation Act on behalf of these employees and
any claims made by any third party as a consequence of any act or omission on the part of these employees are
in no way the State's obligation or responsibility.

14 Governing Law, Jurisdiction, Venue

Venue for all legal proceedings out of this Grant contract Agreement, or its breach, must be in the appropriate
state or federal court with competent jurisdiction in Ramsey County, Minnesota.

15 Termination

15.1 Termination by the State.

A. Wlthout Cause.
The State may terminate this Grant contract Agreement without cause, upon 30 days, written notice to the
Grantee. Upon termination, the Grantee will be entitled to payment, determined on a pro rata basis, for
services satisfactorily performed.

B. With Cause.

The State may immediately terminate this Grant contract Agreement if the state finds that there has been a
failure to comply with the provisions of this grant contract, that reasonable progress has not been made, or
that the purposes for which the funds were granted have not been or will not be fulfilled. The state may take
action to protect the interests of the State of Minnesota, including the refusal to disburse additional funds and
requiring the return of all or part of the funds already disbursed.

15.2 Termination by the Commissioner of Administration.
The commissioner of Administration may immediately and unilaterally terminate this Grant contract
Agreement if further performance under the agreement would not serve agency purposes or performance
under the Grant contract Agreement is not in the best interest of the state.

15.3 Termination for lnsufficient Funding.
The State may immediately terminate this Grant Contract Agreement if it does not obtain funding from the
Minnesota Legislature, or otherfunding source; or if funding cannot be continued at a level sufficientto allow

G - Wykoff Waste Water Treatment plant (SpB25-034) - Commerce
REV. 7.10.2025



Docusign Envelope lD: 1 F71 8E0F-6D6F-4S81 _827E -372AB4CDES41

17 Data Disclosure

Under Minnesota statutes s 270c'65. subd' 3, and other applicable law, the Grantee consents to disclosure ofits social security number, federal employer tax identification number , andf or Minnesota tax identificationnumber, already provided to the state, to federal and state tax agencies and state personnel involved in thepayment of state obligations' These identification numbers ruy bu used in the enforcement of federaland statetax laws which could result in action requiring the Grantee to fiie state tax returns and pay delinquent state taxliabilities, if any.

Exhibits

The following Exhibits are attached and incorporated into this Grant contract Agreement. ln the event of a conflictbetween the terms of this Grant contract Agreement and its Exhibits, or between Exhibits, the order of precedence isfirst the Grant contract Agreement, and then in the foilowing order:

Exhibit A: Specifications, Duties, and Scope of Work

Exhibit B: Payment Schedule

for the payment of the services addressed within this Grant contract Agreement. Termination must be bywritten notice to the Grantee. The state is not obligated to pay for any services that are provided after noticeand effective date of termination. However, the Grantee will be entitled to payment, determined on a pro ratabasis, for services satisfactorily performed to the extent that dedicated funds are available.

ln the event of temporary lack of funding or appropriation, the state may pause its obligations under this Grantcontract Agreement without terminating it. This pause will be for the duration of the lack of funding orappropriation and shall not be considered a termination of the Grant contract ngreemeni. il;ff;e will beng of
ngthieservicesmaybetemporarily
nd sh Grantee of the lack of funding or

riated, at which point thevices ment may resume.

The state will not be assessed any penalty if the Grant contract Agreement is terminated due to insufficientfunding' The state must provide the Grantee notice of the lack of funding within a reasonable time of theState's receiving notice.

16 Publicity and Endorsement

16.1 Publicity. Any publicity pertaining to the services
the State as the sponsoring agency. publicity include
notices, informational pamphlets, press releases,
by or for the Grantee or its employees individuall
primarily funded by state grant appropriations m
website, when practicable,

t6'2 Endorsement' The Grantee must not claim that the State endorses its products or services.

G - Wykoff Waste Water Treatment plant (SpB25_034) _ Commerce
REV. 7.10.202s



Docusign Envetope lD: 1F71BE0F-6D6F_4581_827E_372AB4CDE541

State Encumbrance Verification
lndividual certifies that funds have been encumbered os
required by Minnesoto Stotutes 6O 16A.15

print Name: CARLA COLLTNS 
-

Signature: C4.Jo CotL-

Title: Accounting Ofiicer lnt nrra 10t24t2025

swtFT Contract No, sc# 278483 I Fy26 po# g_21049

Grantee
With delegated duthority

print Name: Rebecca Schmidt

Signature:_
Title: City Admini nrra

Print Name:

Signature

Grant Contract Agreement Signature page

State Agency
With delegoted outhority

Print Name

Signature:

Title: Date;

G - Wykoff Waste Water Treatment plant (SpB25_034) _ Commerce
REV. 7.10.2025



Docusi gn Envelope lD: 1 F71 8E0F-6D6F-4581 -827E _37 2AB4CDES41

Exhibit A: Specifications, Duties, and Scope of Work
The Grantee shall comply with all applicable grants management policies and procedures, set forth through Minnesota
Statutes S 168.97, subd.4 (a),

A. Project: SPB25-034; city of wykoff - waste water Treatment prant

Project Goal: ln 2023 the Minnesota Legislature established the solar on public Buildings (spB) Grant program
(Minn' Stat' 5 216c'377)' The purpose of this program is to provide grants to stimulate the installation of solarenergy systems on or adjacent to public buildings.

The Grantee shall do all things necessary, including partnering with subcontractors, to complete thefollowing tasks according to the following schedule:

2.1 pplications have been filed and

2'2 All necessary interconnection fees have been paid to Grantee electric utility.

Deliverable(s):

r Submit any invoice(s) or receipt of payment(s), for reimbursement,o Upload supporting documentation as proof of interconnection paperwork submission

G - Wykoff Waste Water Treatment plant (SpB25_034) _ Commerce

All necessary interconnection doc
submitted to Grantee electric util

umentation/a
ity,

Deadline1 System Components
End of rnonth 4

Deliverable(s):

o submit any invoice(s) or receipt of payment(s)for reimbursement,
o Upload supporting documentation including, but not limited to, receipts, shipping

label/packing slip, proof of delivery.

' lf equipment has not been received yet, upload proof of order and/or possession of
modures and BOS components and anticipated derivery date,o Enter Task 1 update in Solar on Public Building status Report form, submit status Report
form to Commerce.

T.L

I.2

r/G

PVAlt odm lesu ecesn forsary eth mSyste rea ithe oer eredrd anwith nticia apated flvar
etim meto coet ctntra ead lid of,€, Ir possn ess no Dof eve peo or Gr nteera

IAI eroth comSystem tnponents, Ucl ngdi arei nve rte rs, ereith rdeo withred na ant tcipa ed
rrivala ttime mo coeet deadntract h€,li ro nI opossessi ofn evelD peo teeran

Project Updates:

Setbacks

Timeline updates
Anticipated completion
System promotion planning

o
o
o

O

o

o

Provid e a thorough update on project progress including:

Any other relevant
2 lnterconnection

End of month 8

REV,7.10.202s



Docusign Envelope lD: 1 F718E0F-6D6F_4b81_827E _S72AB4CDES41

Media Kit Acknowledgement
When a local government building goes solar, it's an opportunity for the entire community to
learn about the benefits and partnership with the De partment. To help Grantees with
promoting the work under this grant, the Department will provide n online Media Kit, nd will
be avail ble on the Solar on Public uildines we bpage. lt will include

Press release template
Article template (for website or newsletter)
Social media handles, example language, and graphics

G - Wykoff Waste Water Treatment plant (SpB25-034) _ Commerce

Deadline

Enter Task 2 update in solar on Public Building status Report form, submit status Report
form to Commerce,

a

and related fee payments.

Project Updates:

o
o
o

o
o

Setbacks

Timeline updates
Anticipated completion
System promotion planning

a Provide a thorough update on project progress including:

other relevant u

3 System lnstallation
End of month 18

3'3 A proof of witness test for the System has been completed by the Grantee electric
utility.

3'4 At the time of any System level work order execution, Grantee's Developer returned any
damaged and/or defective panels through the distribution chain for recycling and
inverters to the manufacturer under warranty.

Deliverable(sl: (all documentation wiil be furnished)
o submit any invoice(s) or receipt of payment(s) for reimbursement.

o Upload supporting documentation of proof of interconnection,. Upload a Statement of Compliance form.r Upload a signed inspection form and proof of witness test.
r collect and maintain prevairing wage reports, as required, Minn star.1,j7 ,27., r77.3o.o Enter Task 3 update in Solar on Public Building Status Report form, submit Status Report

form to Commerce.

All components of the System h
System has been inspected and
Jurisdiction,

ave been fully installed,
approved by Grantee Local Authority Having

3,1

3.2

Project Updates:

o
o
o
o
o

Press releases
Stories/case studies
Webpage development
Social media

a Provide a th orough update on project progress including

Other in- rson promotional events
4 Fromotion

End of month 18

REV.7.10,202s



Docusign Envelope lD: 1 F71 8E0F-6D6F-4581 _827E _372AB4ADES41

Deadline

For any public communications about the solar project, on websites, newsletters, news
media, social media, etc., the Grantee will recognize funding from the Minnesota
Department of commerce solar on public Buildings program. Upload an example of
such public communication.
For any public events about the solar project, Grantee will extend an invitation to the
Minnesota Department of Commerce by sending event details and an invitation to the
State's Authorized Representative.
once the system is installed and operational, the Grantee will provide 1-+ photo to the
state of the system. Grantee is responsibre for photo consent forms.
Grantee is encouraged to use the media kit and promotional templates provided by the
Minnesota Department of commerce. Upload a sample of public publicity such as a
poster or event flyer.

Deliverable(s):

o Acknowledge review of Media Kit materials.
r Any final invoice(s) or receipt of payment(s), including supporting documentation, have

been submitted for reimbursement.
r Enter Task 4 update in solar on Public Building status Report form, submit status Report

form to Commerce.

4.1.

4.2

4.4

43

Customizable poster
Custom iza ble event flyer

Promotion Plan U pdates:

ildings grant award fro
project promotional p

Public presentation(s
Press releases

Stories/case studies

The ocal govern me ubli acknowl edge on b
Depanesota entrtm rce. Provi pdate

nclu the may ude, ite
Cou Boa me f,gS, confe nces, mm eventsnity

Other in-person promotional events

Webpage development
Ribbon cutting

5 Reporti lnvoicingand

The Grantee will provide the State's Authorized Representative with any additional
information requested throughout the project pertaining to project status upon request
The Grantee will submit invoices for reimbursement at least as often as requested in
Tasks 1-4 above and as often as monthly.

5.1

5.2

5,3

5.4

The ntee ust nform thoriz eprese ntative, ofte ecess
scuss req ring atten uch deviati cop
modwork cat cerns ted roject' rogress, get

uest topic req logu rega the WAbest
pro cee

ntee fede (i bonny
vedcred its ect

RecyclingCom Repo and d Life
6,1 System LevelWork Order

Grantee's Developer shall

Execution: At the time of any
be responsible for returning

System level work order execution,
damaged andlor defective panels

G - Wykoff Waste Water Treatment plant (SpB25_034) _ Commerce
REV. 7.10.202s



Docusign Envelope lD: 1 F71 8E0F-6D6F-4S81 _827E_372AB4CDE541

G - Wykoff Waste Water Treatment plant (SpB25_034) _ Commerce

rough istribut recycl tnverters ufa
6.2

ctu rer der WA rra
Operation nte nce Wh il o&M ntra Gran tee's

eve per respo tra cki sola system ment ceas nct
inten reaso recycl nverte derprov

cont ract and port tnformati cco with btas k OW
6.3 Syste Com pon ents Wa ran ty: ntee' Deve respo

tra ki System eq me wa nty hat cease nct inten
reaso ecycli ny mod invert ers provi ded nde con
th informati

port
in cco OW

6'4 Third Party ownership: while engaged in a power purchase agreement (or third-party
ownership model) contract, the Grantee's contractor shall be responsible for tracking solar
system equipment that ceases to function as intended (for any reason), recycling otiny
modules or inverters provided under this contract and reporting this information in
accordance with Subtask 6.6. below.

6'5 End of Life Decommissioning and Recycling: At the time of decommissioning or System
removal, the Grantee shall be responsible for the recycling any modules or inverters
provided under this contract and reporting this information in accordance with subtask 6.6
below.

6'6 Tracking and Reporting: All tracking and recycling of System Equipment that ceases to
function as intended (for any reason) shall include counts of modules and inverter types
and be reported on an annual basis, by March 3L for the previous calendar year, to the
Minnesota Pollution control Agency (MpcA). A recycling and reporting form will be
available on the Department's webpage and provided upon contract execution.

Deliverable(s):

Throughoutthe system's lifetime, a copy of the previous year,s recycling and reporting
form (which must be submitted to MPCA annually by March 3i.'t for the previous yearlis
also submitted to the Department by uproading an Annuar Check-tn form.

rough System' lifeti ffi8, Grante upl oad nual heck-ln form
mo after Syste com

REV. 7.10.2025



Docusign Envelope lD: 1 F71 8E0F-6D6F-4581-B27E -372AB4CDES41

Exhibit B: payment Schedule

Project: SP825-034; City of Wykoff - Waste WaterTreatment plant

Budget: List the detailed budget, broken down in the below tables by Grantee system installation expenses and Grantee
system installation funding sources. categories have been pre-populated via budget values provided via the Grant
Application. Review, add additional details, and edit the budget as necessary, Eligible expenses include only those costs
incurred by Grantee towards purchase and installation of the system.

Note: The payment schedule must match the schedule between the Grantee and Developer pei the contract with the
Developer.

ln accordance with Minneso 
, payment shail be made

within 30 days following the state's Authorized Representative approval of an invoice. payments will not be made if
reports or other deliverables are outstanding.

G - Wykoff Waste Water Treatment plant (SpB2S-034) - Commerce

PAYMENT SCHEDUTE Item (Expense) Details Total Cost

Payment to Developer Down Payment 5% 5o,o+z,oo
Payment to Developer Construction Begins 55% S73,062.00
Payment to Developer Substantial Completion 30% S39,852,00
Payment to Developer Final Payment to% Stg,zg+.oo

TOTAL GRANTEE SYSTEM INSTATTATION EXPENSES Stgz,s+o.oo

FUNDING SOURCES: Item Details Total Cost

Solar on Public Buildings Grant

lTc 30% S39,852.00

TOTAL GRANTEE SYSTEM INSTATTATION FUNDING SOURCES S132,840.00

REV. 7.10.2025



Cityha I I @cityofwykoff.sov

From

Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

State of MN IRA Compliance Help
< StateofM N I RATaxCompl ia nceSu pport@deloitte.com >

Wednesday, November 5, ZOZS 11:2g AM
cityha I I @ c ityofwykoff . g ov
Katta, Bryant; Moehring, Erika; Kelly, Elise; Gordon, Travis
RE: IRA 1:1 with City of Wykoff and Deloitte
Safe Harbor Solar Tables.xlsx

cafions.

Hi Becky and Ryan,

Project Overview:
r Two solar projects are planned: one for the well house (24.3 kW Dc / Ig.4 kW Ac, rooftop) and one for the

wastewater treatment plant (54 kW Dc, ground-mounted). Both are under one megawatt, which is relevant for
tax credit eligibility.

o The city has received bids and grant approval, but contracts remain unsigned due to concerns about contract
clauses. The solar supplier has not ordered supplies, raising concerns about timelines, and the planned start date
of next May may not align with federal tax credit deadlines.

Beginning of Construction Requirement - You need to meet either the 5% safe harbor or the physical Work Test
1. 5% Safe Harbor

r Must pay or incur at least 5% of the total cost of the depreciable basis of the facility or energy property
(excluding land and non-integral property),

. Key Points:
o Economic performance is achieved through delivery or transfer of tax ownership.
o The 3.5-month rule exception applies if property/services are expected to be provided within 3.5

, months of payment.
o Costs incurred by a third party under a binding written contract are deemed incurred by you when

incurred by the third party (per section 461). Requirements of a binding written agreement below.
2. Physical Work Test

' lnvolves starting physical work of a significant nature (PWSN) onsite or offsite related to the qualified facility or
energy property.

. Work can be performed by a third party (e.g., vendor).

. The test focuses on the nature of the work, not the amount or cost.o Exclusions: Preliminary activities (design, research, environmental studies, removal of existing foundations) and
inventory work are not counted.

Binding Written Contract Requirements
For work performed by a contractor to count toward pwsN, the contract must:
Be enforceable under lo law
Not limit damages to less
Not be an "option" (requi
Not have substantial mod
Not allow termination for

an 5% of the total contract price
forfeiture of more than a nominal amount, e.g.,5%o of contract price).

ience, suspensions, returns, or exchanges.

Direct Pay Tax Credit Fiting
. Below are the forms you will need file to receive your direct pay tax credit.

o

o

o

o

o

o

Due dates



' Because your fiscal year end is 12/31' the projects placed in service this year would fall into the fiscal year endingL2/3U2o25' Return would then be due 5/t5/2026 (or make extension fiting (form 8868) bv s/ts/zato make thereturn due tI/1,5/26)
o For additional projects that are placed in service in 2o26,the return would then be due 5/t5/2027 (or makeextension fiting (form sg6g) by s/Ls/27 to make the return due t7/15/271

Direct Pay Process after the project is placed in servicer Pre-registration portal (which we
is placed in service) is linked here but after the project

I have also linked thePrefiling registration user guide if tions publication 5gB4o Form 990-T - we have linked the form and instructions
o Form 3800 - we have linked the form and instr

3800
o Form 3468 (this form is specifically for solar credits) - we have linked the form and instructions

https ://www. i rs.sov/fo rms_pu bs/a bout_form_346g
o Form 8936 (this form is specifically for electric vehicle credits) - we have lirrked the form and

instructions https ://www. i rs.sov/i nstructio ns/ig93 6

sps or the rRS has a rist of providers here that you can use

Additional Considerations
o ownership & service Proof: ln order to file the pre-registration, you need to demonstrate ownership and thatthe asset is placed in service (e.g., interconnection agreement orfirst month's bill).o Prohibited Foreign Entities: "Does [solar company] have any plans for how you will comply with prohibited

foreign entity rules that go into effect for projects that begin construction after December 3L, 2025, anddo yourprojects qualify for domestic content?,,

Energy Community Bonus Credit
o Facilities placed in service may be eligible for the Energy community Bonus credit Adder if their location fallswithindesignatedareas,asoutlinedbytheU.S'Departmentofrneigy:

Bonus Credit proBram

o Eligibility depends on the facility being sited within one of the shaded regions on the Department of
Energy's officia I energy com m u nities ma pping too l.o The mapping tool provides up-to-date visual confirmation of eligible geographic areas.

Low-lncome community Bonus credit - Future pranned projects.
o The address

for the map r, see the link here

o This is a competitive application process, so no guarantee that funding will be awarded. you must apply
before the project is placed in service. Applications are considered on a rolling basis as funds are
available' lf the project is placed in service during 2025, the application process is already
closed' However, if you plan to place the project in service during 2926,youcan most likely stillapply.
https ://eco.e ne rsv.eov/l icbo n us/s/

Domestic content safe Harbor Table - Future planned projects.
o ln order to see how the domestic content is calculated please refer to the 2025-0g tab within the attached safe

Harbor Solar tables for detailed information. For projects beginning in 2o2s it will requir e 45%of the



manufactured product components be located within the us. projects that begin construction in 202G will
require 50% of the manufactured product components be located within the us.
Please ensure that the contractor has certified compliance with the domestic content requirement. please
ensure you retain this certification for your records, as it may be needed in the event of an audit.
As discussed on our call, the domestic content requirements specify that at least 45% or sOo/o(depending on
year construction begins) of the component costs must be for products manufactured in the United States. To
determine eligibility:

Add up the numbers in either the Rooftop (MtPEl or Rooftop (string) columns of all manufactured product
components that are made in the US.
lf the total exceeds 45o/o or 50% of the overall component costs, the project qualifies under the domestic
content safe harbor.

Thanks,

Deloitte Tax - State of Minnesota Team

-----Original Appointment-----
From: Moehring, Erika <emoehring@deloitte.com>
Sent: Thursday, October 30,ZO2S 2:25 pM
To: Moehring, Erika; cityhall@cityofwykoff.gov; Kelly, Elise; Gordon, Travis; Wilson, Samuel
Cc: Katta, Bryant
Subject: IRA 1:1 with City of Wykoff and Deloitte
When: Tuesday, November 4,2025 2:00 PM-2:30 PM (UTC-06:00) Central Time (US & Canada).
Where: Microsoft Teams Meeting

Microsoft Teams Need help?

Join the meeting now

Meeting lD: 384 466 928 9L4 7

Passcode: pbTRk6LX

Dial in by phone

+1, 9I7 -78I-4388,,443647342# United States, New yorl< City

Find a local number

Phone conference lD:443 647 342#

For organizers: Meeting options 
I

Reset dial-in PIN

This message (inctuding any attachments) contains confidentiaL information intended for a specific
individuaL and purpose, and is protected by taw. lf you are not the intended recipient, you shou1d detete



this message and any disctosure, copying, or distribution of this message, or the taking of any action
based on it, by you is stricfl.y prohibited.

Detoitte refers to a Detoitte member firm, one of its retated entities, or DeLoitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
("DTTL"). Each Detoitte member firm is a separate Legal, entity and a member of DTTL. DTTL does not

, provide services to clients. Ptease see www.deLoitte.com/about to learn more.

v.E.1


